NOTICE OF AGREEMENT TO EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

Date: 15 December 2022

The Directors

G. Costa {Holdings) Limited (Company No. 3679738} {“Company”)
Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

W1k 4QY

Dear Sir{s}/Madam(s)

Agreement of the sole member of the Company, for the purposes of section 479A(2)(a) of the
Companies Act 2006 (“CA 2006”), to the audit exemption set out in section 479A CA 2006

We, being the holder of the entire issued share capital for the time being in the Company, agree for
the purposes of section 479A(2)(a) CA 2006 to the Company heing exempt from the requirement
under Part 16 CA 2006 to have its annual accounts in respect of the financial year ended 17 September
2022 audited in accordance with the audit exemption set out in section 479A CA 2006.

Far and on behalf of

AB World Foods (Holdings} Limited

i

03/03/2023 6
COMPANIES HOUSE



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Operating segments continued

2021
T Grocery Sugar  Agncalture Ingredients Retail  Contral Total
£m fm £m £m £ fn £
Reavenue from continuing businesses 3694 1,714 1,539 1,687 5,693 {246) 13,881
Internal revenue (1} (G4 {2) {179) - 246 -
External ravenue from conuinuing businesses 3,593 1,850 1,537 1,608 5,593 - 13,887
Businesses disposed 2 - - 1 - - 3
Revenue frorm external customers 3,685 1,650 1,537 1,509 5,593 - 13.884
Adjusted operating profit before joint ventures and associates 364 149 31 134 321 (70) 3829
Share of profit after tax from Joint ventures and associales 49 3 13 17 - - 82
Adjusted operating profit 413 152 44 151 321 {70y 1,011
Finance income g a
Finance exponse (1) {2} - (1 (80} {27) {1771}
Other financial expense - i) m
Adiusted profit before taxation 412 150 44 150 241 {89) 308
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 2 1 - 1 — - 4
Amortisation of non-operating intangibles {41} - 12) {7 - - (50)
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments {3} - - - - - {3}
Transaction costs - - - {2} - (1) {3
Exceptional items - {14n - - 6 {4) {(151)
Profits less losses an sale and closure of businesses - - - 18 - 1 20
Profit before taxation 370 10 42 161 235 (93} 725
Taxation (227) {227}
Profit for the period 370 10 A2 161 235 {320) 498
Segment assets {excluding jaint ventures and assoclates) 2,541 1,776 441 1.480 6,918 154 13,311
Investments in joint ventures and associates 53 28 139 118 - — 338
Segment assets 2,594 1,804 580 1,588 6,918 154 13,649
Cash and cash equivalents 2,275 2,275
Current asset investments 32 32
Incoma tax 81 81
Deferred tax assets 218 218
Employee benefits assets 640 640
Segment liabilities B01) (361 {151} (3401 {4,142) {208) 15,803
Loans and overdrafts {408) {4086)
Income tax (172} (172)
Deferred tax liabilities (363) (363)
Employee benefits llabilities (147 (147
Net assets 1,883 1,443 428 1,268 2777 2,104 10,004
Nan-current asset additions 113 134 21 118 343 18 745
Depreciation (including of right-of-use assets) (110) (82} {186} {58} {h49) 110} {223)
Amortisation {48) 14 (3) {9 i8) 2) {74)
Reversal of impairment cf property, plant and equipment and
- - - 10 - - 10

right-of-use assets
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2022

United Kingdom Europe & Africa The Americas Asia Pacific Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue from external customers 6,378 6,791 2,028 2,300 16,897
Segment assets 5,972 8,519 1,840 1,673 16,004
Non-current asset additions 285 487 177 103 1,062
Depreciation {including of right-of-use assets) (277) {392) (69} (64) (802}
Amortisation {(25) {32) {B) (6) {68}
impairment of property, plant andbequ\'pment on sale and

closure of husinesses o - - - {30 (30}
Acqguired inventory farr value adiustrments {2} {3) - - (5)
Transaction costs (2} {3) - m (6)
Exceptional items - (208) - - (206)
2021

Unized Kingdor Europe & Afnca The Areicss Asa Pacific Total
£m fm fm £rii fri

Revenue from external customers 4,982 4,844 1,678 2,280 13,884
Segment assets 5,178 5,754 1,324 1,393 13,648
Non-current asset additions 200 382 74 89 745
Depreciation (including of right-of-use assets) {288) {406) (62) {87} 1823)
Amartisation {35] (26) (7] {6} {74)
Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment

on sale and closure of businesses — - - 10 10
Acguired inventary fair value adjusiments - (3) - - (3)
Transaction costs {2} - - (1) (3}
Exceptional items (13} {117} - (21) (151}
The Group's operations in the following countries met the criteria for separate disclosure:

Revende Non-current assets
2022 2027 2022 2021
£m fm £m Err

Australia 1,232 1,209 623 533
Spain 1,545 1,120 650 670
United States 1,315 1,088 866 672

All segment disclosures are stated before reclassification of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale (see note 151
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

2. Operating costs

2022 2021

Mot £m £m
Operating costs
Cost of sales {including amorusation of intangibles) 153,219 10,753
Distribution costs 1,465 1,303
Administration expanses 1,045 952
Exceptional items 206 151

15,935 13,159

Operating costs are stated after charging/(crediting):
Employvee benafits expense 3 2,812 2,839
Amortisation of nor-operating intangibles 8 44 48
Amoriisation of operating intangibles 8 24 28
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 5 3
Profits less lasses on disposal of non-current assets (7) {4
Depreciation of property, plant and aguipment g 521 535
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets and non-cash lease adjustments 10 281 288
Transaction costs 6 3
Effect of hyperinflationary ecornomies 16 7
Other cperating income {25} (23]
Research and development expenditure 37 34
Farr valua gains on financial assets and liabilities held for trading (23) {15}
Fair value losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading 17 12
Foreign exchange gains on operating activities {36} (31
Foreign exchange losses on operating activitics 37 33

Transaction costs of £6m and amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £47m {2027 - £3m and £50m) shown as adjusting items
In the income statement, :nclude £ri} and £3m respectively (2021 — £nil and £2m respectively) incurred by |cint ventures, in addition
to the amounts shown above.

Exceptional items

2022

The income statement this vear included an axceptional charge of £208m comprising non-cash writedowns of £72m against
property, plant and eqguipment and a writedawn of £134m of right-of-use assets relating to the capitalisation of store leases for
Primark. We first entered the German markat in 2009 and achieved very high sales densities in our garly stores. We then opened
stares in many city centres with a retad selling space much larger than the average for the rest of the Primark estate. Howaver,
sales densities declined in the later years up to the 2019 financial year and, weaker trading in the second half of this financial year,
particularly in Germany, has made it very urlikely that sales densitias wili recover to pre-COVID levels. In addition, Germany 1s a
high cost to serve market for retallers. As a conseguance, the future cashflows in our revised store forecast for Germany at the
financial year end requires us ta racognise an impairment which has been treated as exceptional in these financial statements. We
remam commiited to our loyal customars in this important market and we are now reviewing options to return cur business in
Germany ta leng-term profitability. These options include the potential to optimise the retail selling space by store as well as
reviewing the footprint of the overali store portfolio, Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total tax
charge for this financial year was the de-recognition of the deferred tax assets relating to Germany.

2021

Exceptional items of £15Tm included imparrments of £141m in property, plant and egquipment at Azucarera and other sugar
pusinesses, 8 £21m inventory charge in Primark, the reversal of £20m of the £22m Primark inventory provision raised in 2020, a
£5m provision for excessive stock of COVID-19 related items in Primark and a £4m pension past service cost following a further
Migh Court ruling on 20 Novembper 2020 regarding the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions.
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2022 2021
Auditar's ramureratior £m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of the audit
Group audil of thase financial statements 1.6 1.4
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries’ financial statements 7.6 7.0
Total audit remuneration 9.2 8.4
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of non-audit related
services
Audit-related assurance services 04 0.4
All other services 0.5 0.3
Total non-audit related remuneration 0.9 0.7
3. Employees
2022 2021
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 41,526 42,686
Europe & Africa 73,155 67,681
The Americas 6,102 6,081
Asia Pacific 11,490 11,454
132,273 127,912
2022 2021
MNote £m ne
Employee benefits expense
\Wages and salaries 2,350 2,209
Social security contributions am 282
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 12 87 g8t
Charge for defined benefit schermes 12 45 a0
Equity-settled share-based payment schemes 24 19 17
2,812 2.639

Detalls of directors’ remuneration, share incentives and pension entitlements are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 128

to 153.

4. Interest and other financial income and expense

2022 2071
Maota £m £m
Finance income
Cash and cash equivalents and currat asset investrments 19 9
19 9
Finance expense
Bank loans and ovardrafts {20) (18)
Alt other borrowings (8) (10
Lease liabilities 10 {81) (24
Other payables {2} {1)
{111) {111
Other financial income/{expense)
Interest Income on employee benefit scheme assets 12 84 69
Interest charge on employee benefit scheme fiabilites 12 (74} {69
Interest charge on irrecoverable surplus 12 (1) {1
Net financial income/{expense) from employee benefit schemes 9 {1}
Net foreign exchange gains on financing activities 4 -
Total other financial income/{expense) 13 {1}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 Septemhber 2022

5. Income tax expense

2022 2021
£m £rm
Current tax expense
UK - corporation tax at 19% (2021 - 19%,) 44 48
QOverseas — corporation tax 244 208
UK = {over)funder provided in prior periads {12} 9
Overseas - over provided in prior pericds 1 (9)
277 254
Deferred tax expense
UK doforred tax 18 13
Overseas deferred tax 12 (37)
UK — over provided in prior periods {3} {3
QOverseas — over provided in prior periads (8} -
79 (27}
Total income tax expense in the income statement 356 227
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Prafit before taxation 1,076 725
Less share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates {109) {79)
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 967 646
MNominal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021 — 19%) 184 123
Effect of higher and lower tax rates on overseas earnings 4 33
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income statement 2 17
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 63 51
Disposal of asscts covered by tax exemptions or unrecognised capital losses 6 (3}
Deferred tax not recognised 120 9
Adiustments in respect of prior periods {23) 1))
356 227
Income tax recognised directly in equity
Delferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes 198 144
Deferred tax asscclated with share-based payments 1 -
Deferred tax asscciated with movement in cash flow hedging position 28 14
Deferred tax associated with mavement in other investmeants 1 -
) 228 158

The UK corporation tax rate of 13% is set ta increase to 26% fram 1 April 2023, The iegislation to effect these changes was
enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accardingly.

In April 2018 the European Commission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's controlled foreign
company legislation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with £U State Aid rules in certain circumstances. The
Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decisicn as might other UK-based multinational groups that had financing
arrangements in line with the UK's legislation in force at the time. The UK Government, the Group and a number of other UK
companies appealed against this decision to the General Court of the European Union 'GCEU'). On 8 June 2022, the GCEU found
in favour of the Commission's ariginal decision. As a result of this, in August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and various
other UK companics appealed GCEU's decision to the Court of Justice of the European tUnion. We have calculated our maximurm
potential Hability to be £26m (2021: £26m), however wea do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount
based on our current assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC,

we made payments to HMRC in the prior year. Qur assessment remains that no provision is required in iespect of this amount.
We will continue to consider the iImpact of the Commission’s deaision on the Group and the potential requirement to record

a provisian.

Defarred taxation balances are analysed in note 13,
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6. Dividends

2022 2023 2022 2021

pence per share  pence per share £m £m

2020 final - - — _
2027 interim - 6.20 - 49
2021 final and specia 34.30 - 271 -
2022 interim 13.80 - 109 -
o 48.10 6.20 380 49

The 2022 interim dividend was declared on 28 April 2022 and was paid on 8 July 2022 The 2022 final dividend ot 28 9p. tafal value
of £236m, will be paid on 13 January 2023 to shargholders on the reqister on 16 December 2022,

Dividends relating to the period were 43.7p per share totalling £345m {2021 — 40 5p per share totalling £320m including the special
dividend ot 13.6p tor £109m),

7. Earnings per share

The calcutation of basic earnings per share at 17 September 2022 was bascd on the net profit attrbutakle to equity shereholders of
£700m {2021 - £478m), and a waighted average number of shares outstanding during the year of 789 million {2021 — 790 miliion),
Tre calculation of the weighied average number of shares excludes the shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust
on which the dividends are being waived.

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share, which exclude the impact of profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and the salg
and closure of businesses, amortisation of acquired inventory fair value adjustments, transaction costs, amortisation of non-
operating INtanaibles, exceplional items and any assocliated tax credits, is shown to prowide clarity on the underlying performance
of the Group.

Transacton costs of £6m and amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £47m (2021 — £3m and £50m) shown as adjusting items
telow include £l and £3n1 respactively (2021 -~ £nil and £2m respectively) incurred by joint ventures,

The diluted earnings per share caleulation takes into account the dilutive effect of share incentives. The diluted, weighted average
number of shares is 789 million (2021 — 780 million). There is no difference between basic and diluted eamings.

2022 2021

£m £

Adjusted profit for the period 1,034 833
Disposal of non-current assets 7 4
Sale and closure of businesses {23) 20
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments {5) (31
Transaction costs {6) (3)
Exceptional iterms {206} (151}
Tax effect on above adjustments {63) 23
Amortisation of non-operating intangibles {47) (50}
Tax credit on nen-operating intangibles amaortisation and goodwill 9 5
Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 700 478

2022 221

pence perce

Adjusted earnings per share 131.1 80.1
Disposal of non-current assets 0.9 0.5
Sale and closure of businasses {2.9) 25
Acquired inventary fair value adjustments {0.86) 0.4}
Transaction costs {0.8) {0.4)
Exceptional items (26.1) {(18.1)
Tax effect on above adjustrments {8.0} 3.0
Amartisation of non-operating intangibies (6.0} {6.3)
Tax credit on non-aperating intangibles amortisation ana goodwill 1.0 0.6
Earnings per ordinary share 88.6 60.5
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

8. intangible assets

hon-operaung Operating
Custamer Growar
Goadwwll lechnology Brands  relationstups  egreements (ner (her Tota!
fm £ fim £ fry fin £ £
Cost
At 12 September 2020 1,281 210 447 281 103 5 547 2,868
Acquisitions — externally purchased - - - - - - 96 36
Acqurred through business combinations - 16 — 3 - - 1 20
Other disposals - - - - - - (200 (20}
Effect of hyperinflationaty ecoromies 4 - - - - - - 4
Effect of moverents in foreign exchangs (49} 12 112) {13 B - 33) {113)
At 18 September 2021 1,236 214 429 271 109 5 591 2,855
Acquisitions - externally purchased - - — - - 138 138
Acquired threugh business combinations 55 49 33 & - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - - {43) {49}
Transfer to assets classitied as held for sale - - - - - - (16) {16}
Effect of hynerinflationary economies g — " - - - - g
Effect of movementis in fareign exchange 84 22 26 13 1 - 33 179
At 17 September 2022 1,414 285 488 290 110 5 697 3,289
Amortisation and impairment
At 12 September 2020 15 204 353 182 103 5 267 1.239
Amortisation far the year - ? 20 26 - - 26 74
Impairment - - = - - = 2 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {3} {11 {11} s) 6 - 114) {47)
At 18 September 2021 112 195 372 200 109 5 281 1,274
Armortisation for the yea: - 7 22 15 - - 24 (615;
Other disposals - - - - - - h (1}
Transfer 10 assets classified as held for sale - - - - - - {4} (4}
Etfect of movements in foreign exchangs 10 19 21 11 1 - 22 84
At 17 September 2022 122 221 415 226 110 5 322 1,421
Net book value
At 12 Septermnber 2020 1,168 6 78 99 - - 280 1,629
At 18 September 2021 1,124 19 57 71 — - 310 1,681
At 17 September 2022 1,292 64 73 64 - - 375 1,868

In addition to the amounts disclosed abave, there are £12m (2021 - £nil) intangible assets classified as assets

note 15).

held tor sala (see

Amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £47m (2021 - £50m) shown as an adjusting item in the income statement includes
£3m {2021 -~ £2m) incurred by joint ventures in additon to the amounts shown above.

Impairment

As at 17 September 2022, the censolidated balance shest included goodwill of £1,292m {2021 - £1,124m). Goodwill is aliocated to
the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combnation that gave rise to the goodwill, as fallows.

Prmary reparsng Digcoan 2022 2021

CGeU or groun of CGUs segrnen? rate £m £y
Acetum Grocery 12.3% 93 90
ACH Grocery 13.0% 2038 174
AB Mauri Ingredients 16.2% 289 267
Twinings Ovaltine Grocery 12.2% 119 119
lovo Sugar 23.4% 105 104
AB World Foods Grocery 12.4% 79 78
Other (not individually sigificant) Various Various 399 292
1,292 1,124
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A CGU, ur group of CGUs, 1o which goodwill has been allocated must be assessed Tor imparment annually, or more frequently if
events or circimstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabla. Thare has baan nc change in CGUs or group of
CGUs from the prior year.

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed by reference 1o its value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of sach of the CGUs
or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the most racant budget, which has been approved by the Board and reflects
managament’s expectations of sales growlh, operating costs and margin, based on past experience and external sourcas of
information. Long-term growth rates for periods not covered by the annual budgat reflect the products, industries and countries in
which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs, operate.

Management expects to achieve growth over the next three to five years in excess of the long-term growth rates for the appheable
country or region In these circumstances, budgeted cash flows are extended, generally to betweaen three and five years, using
specific growth assumptions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key essumptions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate to discount rates,
growih rates anrl expantad rhanges in volumes, selling prices and dircet costs.

The cash flow projactions have bean discounted using a pre-iax weighted average cost of capital for each business, adjusted for
country, industry and market risk. Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with those used in the cash
flow projections, The rates used were betwaen 9.8% and 23.4% (2021 — between 8.8% and 25.7%}.

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, applied in the value in use calculations for goodwill allocatad to
cach of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant ta the total carrying amount of goodwill, were in a range between 0% and
8.7%, consistent with the infiation factors included in the discount rates applied {2021 ~ betweenr 0% and 8.3%).

Changes in volumas, selling prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changes in the market.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on managemeant’s estimates and judgements, particularty as they relate to the forecasting of
future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected long-term growth rates. Each of the Group's CGUs had headroom
under the annual impairment review,

AB Mauri full vear trading was lower than the prior year and profitability has been impacted by the challenges of passing en high
levels of input cost inflation to customers, including in hyperinflationary economies [Argentina and Turkey), compounded by
competitive pricing pressuras in some of 1ts businesses and currency devaluations. Estimation uncertainty is increased as a result
of the multiple |ocations the AB Maur: division operates in, the macroeconomic challenges described above, the continued
development of new products and any residual impact of COVID-19. Accordingly, management has again undertaken an
impairment review. Detailed forecasts for a period of five years to reflect the time required for completion of the business plan
were prepared and management concluded that the assets were not Impaired, The moderate forecast improvement has been
driven off successful pricing aclions in response to significant global input cost inflation across key commodities, energy and freight
in addition to a number of cost reduction actions, and continued growth in the global bakery ingredients business. However, the
increase in the discount rate significantly reduced overall headroom. Headroom was $72m on a CGU carrying value of $1,044m
{2021 - headroom of $232m on a CGU carrying value of $1,003m). The geographic diversity and varying local economic
environments of AB Mauri's operations rmean that the critical assumptions underlying the datailed forecasts used in the impairment
modei are wida-ranging. It is therefore impractical to provide meaningful sensitivities to these assumptions other than the discount
rate. The discount rate used was 16.2% (2021 - 14.1%) and would have 10 increase to more than 18.0% {2021 - 16.3%) before
value in use fell below the CGU carrying value. Estimates of long-term growth rates beyord the forecast periods were 2-3%

(2021 - 2-3%) per znrium dependent on locatian.

In light of the supply side inflationary pressures combined with the cost of living crisis faced by our UK Grocery business
meanagement performed a detailed impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded no impairment was deemed
necessary. Key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include achievermnent of price increases in high inflation
environments, strategic mitiatives in the UK and US markets, implemeantation of a number of margmn improvement initiatives,
particularly in cost reduction, and conservative volume elasticity estimations. Headroom was £28m on a CGU carrying value of
£147m {2027 - headroom of £47m on a CGU carrying value at £164m). The discount rate used was 12.0% and would have to
increase to more than 13.5% befora value i use fell below the CGU carrying value.
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9. Property, plant and equipment

Land ard Flantand  Tixtures and  Assers under Sugar cane
buildirgs machinery fittings  construcion rcots Tetal
£rm £ £m £m fm im
Cost
At 12 September 2020 2,743 4,038 4.014 369 34 11,245
Acquisitions - extarnally purchased 56 50 118 304 10 539
Other disposals 115) {40} {8) - - (63}
Transfers from assets under construction 10 126 77 {213) - -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (B) {25) - - = {313
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 81 (138} {183) (2 {2) {424)
At 18 September 2021 2.707 4,008 4,019 £40 92 11,266
Acquisitions — externally purchased 32 76 203 421 11 743
Acquired through business combinations 1 4 1 - - 6
Other disposals {14} (3} {17 - {4 (38}
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 a8 (293) - -
Transfer (to}/from assets classified as held for sale (32) {(53) {2) - - (87)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 98 223 118 37 6 483
At 17 September 2022 2,325 4,419 4,419 605 105 12,373
Depreciation and impairment
At 12 September 2020 721 2.682 2,148 - 43 5,584
Cepreciation for the yvear 51 180 296 - 8 538
Impairment 24 112 3 - - 139
Reversal of impairment on sale and closure of business (3} {7 - - - {10)
Other disposals (7} (36) (6] - - {49)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (3 {18) - - - 21
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {24} (86) 198) - - (208}
At 18 September 2027 759 2827 2,343 - 51 5,980
Depreciation for the year 47 174 290 - 10 521
Impairment - - 72 - - 72
Impairment or: sale and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
Other disposals {1 - 17 - {4) {22)
Transfer {to)ffrom assets classified as held for sale {17} (60} 2 - - (79
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 35 160 74 - 3 272
At 17 September 2022 834 3,120 2,760 - 60 6,774
Net book value
A1 12 September 2020 2,022 1,363 1. 866 369 41 5,601
A1 18 September 2021 1,918 1,181 1,676 440 41 5,286
At 17 September 2022 1,991 1,299 1,659 605 45 5,599
2022 2021
£fm £m
Capital expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 364 307

In addition 1o the amounts disclosed ahove, there are £18m (2021 — £10m) of property. plant and equipment classified as assets
held for sale {see note 15). Of this, £18m {2021 - £3m) is freehold land and buildings.
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Impairment

The methodology used to assess property, plant and equipment for impairmeant 1s the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goedwill. See note 8 for further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal 1s higher than vafus
in use, this methodology has been used to determine the reccverable amount. This method uses inputs that are unchservable,
uaing the best information available in the circumstances for valuing the CGU, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair
value measurement.

An impairment of AS150m (£98m) was recorded in 2072 in the Australian meat business. Following a detziled assessment,
management has concluded that the carrying value of the assets in the meat business is not further impaired. Headroom was
A%46m on a CGU carrying value of A$302m (2021 - headroom of A$63m on a CGU carrying values of A$232m). The discount rate
used was 11.9% (2021 - 85%). Fstimates of long-tenm growth 1aies beyond the forecast periods were 2.0% (2021 -2.0%) per
annum. A sensitivity of +/~ 1% on the discount rate decreasesfincreases haadroom by AS53m either way (2021 — A$51m either
way respectivaly).

The income statement this year included an exceptional charge of £206m comprising non-cash writedowns of £72m against
property plant and equipment and a writadown of £134m of nght-of-use assets relating to the capitalisation of Primark Garmany
store leases. We first entered the German market in 2009 and achieved very high salas densities in our early stores. We then
opened stores in many city centres with a retall selling space much larger than the average for the rest of the Primark estate.
Haowever, sales dansities declined in the later vears up to the 2019 financial year and, weaker trading in the secand half of this
finangial year, particularly in Gerrany, has rnade it very unlikely that sales densities will recover to pre-COVID levels. In addition,
Germany is a high cost to serve market for retailers. As & consaquence, the future cashflows in our revised store forecast for
Germany at the financial vear end reguires us 1o recognise an imparment which has been treated as exceptional in these financial
staterments. The impairment maodels assuma that sales densities will dechne for years 2 to b of these cashflows. Estimates of
long-term growth rates beyond the forecast penods were 2% per annum, Key assumptions were revenue growtn, sales density
projections, assumptions on operating costs, margin and discount rates. The discount rate used was 8.05%.

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022 189



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

10, Leases

Most of the Group's right-of-use assets are associaled with our leased property portfolio in the Retal segment.

Right-of-use assets

Land and bulldings  Plant and machurary  Fistures and fittings Tatal
£m £m &m £m

Cost
At 12 September 2020 3,345 a7 1 3,393
Additions 97 18 1 i16
Lease incentives {18) - - {18)
Other movements 8) - - ()
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange (187) 2) - {159
At 18 Seplember 2021 3,281 683 2 3,328
Additions 161 10 - 171
Lease incentives {(48) - (463
Acquired through business combinations 8 - - 8
Other disposals 1) {1) {1) {3}
Other movermeants 12 2 - 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 107 2 - 109
At 17 Septembher 2022 3,502 76 1 3,579
Depreciation and impairment
A1 12 September 2020 385 17 1 403
Depreciation for the year 279 17 - 2986
Other movements - {1 - m
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (20} {1 - (21}
At 18 September 2021 644 32 1 677
Depreciation for the year 263 18 - 281
Impairment 134 - - 134
Other disposals {1 (1 (1) (3
Etfact of movements in forsign exchange 33 1 - 34
At 17 September 2022 1,073 50 - 1,123
Net baok value
At 12 September 2020 2,860 30 — 2,990
At 18 September 2021 2,617 31 1 2,649
At 17 September 2022 2,429 26 1 2,456

Impairment

The methodology used to assess right-of-use assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment assessments

of goodwill. See note 8 for further details.

In the vear there was a £134m (2021 - £nill impairment of right-of-use assets relating te Primark (included within

exceptional items).

l.ease liabilities

Land and bu'lzings  Plant and machinary Fretures and fittings Total
£ £m £rn fm

Cost

At 12 September 2020 3,620 35 - 3,6b5

Additions 91 18 1 110

Interest expense relating 1o lesse liabilities 83 1 - 84

Repayment of lease lizhilities (354) (19} {1 (374)
Other movemeants (11 1 - (10}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (167) {2 - {169}
At 18 September 2021 3,262 34 - 3,296
Additions 161 9 - 170
Interast expense relating to lease liabilities 80 1 - 81

Repayment of lease liabilities (385) (18) - {403}
Acquisition of businesses & - - 8
Other movements 14 2 - 18

Effect of movements in foreign exchange 97 1 - 98

At 17 September 2022 3,237 29 - 3.266
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2022 201

£m fm

Current 330 304
Non-current 2,936 2,992
3,266 3,286

Lease habilities comprise £3,252m (2021 ~ £3,281m) capital payable and £14m {20271 - £15m) interest payable, The interest
payable is ail currant and disclosed within trade and other payables. Repayments comprise £321m (2021 - £290m) capital and
£82m (20271 — £34m) interest.

Other information relating to leases
The Group had the following expense relating to short-term leases and low-value leases:

2022 2027

£m £m

Land and buildings - 1
Plant and machinery 2 1
Fixtures and fiitings 1 2
3 4

The Group expensed £1m (2021 ~ £1m) of variable lease payments that do not form part of the lease liability. Cash outfiows of
f4m (2021 - £2m) that do not form: part of the lease hability are expected to be made in the next 12 months.

Rental receipts of £4m (2021 - £6m} were recognised relating to operating leases. The iotal of future munimum rental
receipts expeaciad o be recaved is £36m {2027 -~ £46m). £11m {2027 — £17m) is due 1o be received in respect of sub-leasing
right-of-use assets.

11. Investments in joint ventures and associates

Jamnt vantures Associatas

£ Zr

At 12 Septermnbear 2020 233 56
Acquisitions 43 -
Protit for the penod 56 13
Diwvidends received (581 (5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {6) 4
At 18 September 2021 278 60
Acquisitions 4 -
Profit for the peariod a0 19
Dividends raceived (88) {5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange i7 11
At 17 September 2022 301 85

Details of joint ventures and associates are listed in note 29.

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets, liabilites
and profit of joing venturss and assowiates:

Joint veniures Assoc sles

2022 2021 2022 2021

£fm frm £m £rm

Non-currant assets 202 160 46 38
Current assets 641 441 427 302
Current liabilities (475) [(285) {386} (278}
Non-current liabilities {87) 57 (3} (3)
Goodwill 20 19 1
Net assets 301 278 85 60
Revenue 2,165 1,566 1,313 314
Profit for the period 80 66 19 13
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12. Employee entitlements
The Group operates a nuimber of delined banefit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK and overseas.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to a variety of actuarial risks including demographic assumptions such as mortality
and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation risk and market {investmeant) risk. The Group 1s not exposed to any
unusual, entity-specific or scheme-spacific nsks. All schemes comply with local legislative requirements,

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the "Scheme'}), which is a
funded final salary scheme that is closed to new members. Defined contnibution arrangements are In place for other employees.
The UK defined benefit scheme represents 90% {2021 - 91%) of the Group’s defined benefit scheme assets and 86% (2021

- 88%: of defined benefit schame tiabilties. The Scheme is governad by a trustee board which is independent of the Group and
which agress a schedule of contributions with the Company each time a formal funding valuation 1s performed

The most recent triennial funding valuation of the Scheme vwas carmed out as at b April 2020, using the current unit melhod, and
revealed a deficit of £302m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,317m, representing 92% of members’ accrusd
bencfits after allowing for expected future salary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed using a nsk-controlled investment strategy, which inciudes a lisbility-driven investment policy
that seeks to match, where appropriate, the profile of the fabilities. This includes the use of derivative instruments to hadge
nflation, interest and foreign exchange risks, The Scheme uthses both market and solvency triggers to develep the level of hedges
in place. To date, the Scheme s fully hedged for 74 % of inflation sensitivity and 3% of interest rate risk. [t is intended 1o hedge
80% of total cxposure.

The Scheme s forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct invesiments in the equity of the Company, although 1t is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some eguity funds.

Overseas defined bhenefit schemes

The Graup also operates defined benefit retirement schemeas in a number of overseas businasses, which are primarily funded final
safary schemaes, as well as a small number of unfunded post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are accounted for in the
same way as defined benefit retirement schemes,

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates a number of definad contribution schemes for which the charge was £42m in the UK and £45m oversaas,
totalling £87m (2021 — UK £40m, overseas £41m, totalling £81m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions for the Group’s defined benefit schemes at the year end were:

2022 2022 2021 2021

UK Overseas Uk Oversaas

% % W s

Discount rate 4.6 0.9-13.5 1.8 0-14.1
Inflation 2.6-3.4 0-55.0 2.6-34 0-12.4
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7-43 0-40.0 3.7-4.3 0-12.0
Rate of ncrease for pensions in payment 1.9-3.2 0-40.0 2.1-3.2 0-12.0
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment iwhere provided) 2.5-2.8 0-2.3 2527 0-2.0

Discount rates are determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality carporate bonds consistent
with the estimated tarm of the obkgations. This has been done in conjunction with independent actuaries in each junsdiction.

The UK inflation assumption includes assumptions on both the Ratail Price Index and Consumer Price Index measures of inflation
on the basis that the gap between the two measures is expected to remain stable in the long term.
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The mortality assurmplions used (o valug the UK defined benelit schermes in 2022 are derived from the 53 mortality tables with
improvemeants in line with the 2020 projection model prepared by the Continuous Mortality Investgation of the UK actuarial
profession (2027 — §3 mortality tables wath improvements in line with the 2018 projection model), with a O-year rating movement
for males and females {2021 - O-year rating movement for males and females), both with a fong-term trend of 1.5% {2021 ~ 1.5%].
These mortality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assumptions for further improvements in life expectancy of
scheme membars. Examples of the resulting Iife expectancies in the UK defined benefit schemes are as follows:

2022 2021
Life esuectancy from age 85 (in years) Male Female tAaln Famale
Member aged 85 in 2022 {2021) 22.1 24.3 22.1 243
Member aged 65 in 2042 {2041) 23.7 26.1 23.7 261

An allowance has besn made for cash commutation In line with emerging schame experience. Other demographic assumptions for
the UK defined benefit schemeas are sat having regard to the latast trends in scheme exparience and ather relevant data.

The assumptions ares reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the perodic funding valuatiaon of the schemes.
For the overseas schemes, regionally appropriate assumptions for mortality, financial and demographic factors have been used

A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions usad to measure UK defined benefit scheame labilities at 17 September 2022 15,

Change :n assumption Impact on schame bahil ties

Discount rate decreasefincrease by 0.1% increase/decrease by 1.5%

Inflatian increase/daecrease by 0.1% mcrease by 0.9%/decrease by 1.2%

Rate of real increase in salaries increase/decrease by 0.1% Increase/decrease by 0.3%
membears assumed (o be cne

Rate of mortality year younger/older increase/decrease by 4.2%

A sensitivity 1o the rate of Increass In pensions in payment and pensions in deferment is rapresentad by the inflation sensitivity, as
all pensions increases and deferred ravaluations are linked to inflation.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determinad based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumptions occourring
at the end of the period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a charge in the specific assumption
while holding all other assumpticns constant. When calculatung the sensitivities, the same method used to calculate scheme
habilites recognised in the balance sheet has been appled. The method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
have not changed since the prior year.

Balance sheet

2022 2021
UK  Overseas Tatal UK Overseas Total
fm £m £m £ £im £m
Cquities 1,135 188 1,323 1,246 194 1,440
Government bonds 308 92 400 840 86 326
Corporate and other bonds 767 47 814 812 19 861
Property 398 37 435 360 25 383
Cash and other assets 1.126 53 1,179 1.057 55 1,112
Scheme assels 3,734 417 4,151 4315 433 4,728
Scheme labilities {2,390) {405) {2,795) {3,719} {490} {4,208)
Aggregate net surplusideticit) 1,344 12 1,356 586 {77} 519
Irrecoverable surplus™ - {42) {42) - {26) {26)
Net pension asset/(liability) 1,344 {30) 1.314 588 (103) 493
Analysed as
Schemeas in surplus 1,366 27 1,393 633 7 640
Schemes in dafigit {22} {57} {79) {37} {(110) (147}
1,344 {30} 1,314 bae {103} 493
Unfunded hability included in the present value of scheme
llabilities above (22) {52} {74) {37 (66) {103)
* The su_ro[uses N the plans a°c ohly tecave able 10 the extent that the Group can banafit from either refunas formally agreed or from future contnbutien
ragLeicns.
UK Scheme

Scheme assets include £50m {2021 — £345m) of denvative mstruments, £441m {2021 - £482m) of corporate debt instruments and
£861m {2021 - £11,394m) of government dabt,

Corporate and other bonds assets of £767m {2021 ~ £812m) include £248m {2021 - £225m) of assets whose valuation is not
derved from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equity assets, government bonds, and corporate and other bonds is
derved from quoted market prices. The carrying value of UK property assets is based on a 30 June market valuation, adjusted for
purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuation and the balance sheet date. Cash and other assets includes
£820m (2021 - £6897m) of assets whaose valuation is not derived from guoted market prices.
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12. Employee entitlements continued

For financial reporting in the Group's financial statements, labilities are assessad by actuaries using the projected unit method.
The accounting value 1s different from the result obtamned using the funding basis, mainly due ta different assumptions used lo
project scheme liabilities.

The defined benefit scheme liabilities comprise 24% (2021 - 26%) in respect of active participants, 209 {20271 — 23%) for deferred
participants and B6% {2021 - 512%) for pensioners.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefis scheme liabilities at the end of the year 1s 15 years for both UK and overseas
schemes {2021 - 17 years for bath UK and overseas schemasl,

Income statement
The charge to the income statemant for employee benefit schemes comprises:

o 2022 2021
£m £
Charged to operating prafit.
Defined benefit schemes
Current service cost {45} (48}
Past service cost - (4}
Defined contributior. schemes (87} {81)
Total operating cost {132) {131}
Reported in other financial iIncome/{expense):
Net interest income on the nat pension asset 10 -
Interest charge on irrecoverable surplus {1 (1)
Net impact on profit before rax {123) {132}

Cash flow

Group cash flow in respact of amployec benofits schemes comprises contributions paid to funded schemes of £36m (2021
- £39m) and benefits paid In respact of unfunded schemaes of £2m {2021 — £3m). Contrnbutions to funded defined benefit schames

are subject to pericdic review. Contributrons te defined contribution schemes amounted to £87m (2021 ~ £81m).

Total contributions to funded schemes and banefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2023 are
currently expected to be approximately £29m in the UK and £10m overseas, totaling £39m (2021 - UK £30m, overseas £10m,

totslling £40m).

QOther comprehensive incame

Remeasuraments of the nel pension asset recognised 1n other comprehensive iIncome are as follows:

2022 2021
£m fim
rieturn on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest in the income statement (582} 864
Actuarial gainsfilosses) arising from changas in financial assumptions 1,440 (101}
Actuanal gains/ilosses) ansing from changas in demographic assumptions 11 ()
Experience (lossesl/gains on scheme liabilities (38} 12
Change in unrecognised surplus {10) {12)
Remeasurements of the net pension asset 821 559
Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
assets assets  liabilities hab ites net net
£m £r £m £m £fm £rn
At beginning of year 4,728 4,153 {4,209) 14,206) 519 {53
Current service cost - - {45) (46) (45) {46}
Employee contributions 8 7 (8) {7) - -
Employer contributions 36 38 - - 36 39
Benefit payments {154} (179 156 182 2 3
Past service cost - - - {41 - 4
Interest income/{expense) 84 £9 {74) (69 10 -
{Lossl/return on scheme assets less interest income {»82) 664 ~ - (582) 664
Actuarial gainsfllosses) arising from changes in financial
assumptions - - 1,440 (101 1,440 (101
Actuarial gains/llosses) arising from changes in demographic
assumplions - - 11 {4} 11 (4)
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme liahilities - ~ {38} 12 {38) 12
Effect of movermnents in foreign exchange 31 {25) (28} 34 3 9
Arend of year 4,151 4,728 {2,795} {4 209) 1,356 519
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Reconciliation of change in irrecaverable surplus

2022 2021

£m £
At baginning of year {26) (13)
Change recognised in other comprehensive income (10} {12}
Interest charge on irrecoverable surplus (n (1)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ] (5) -
At end of year {42) (256)

13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Provisions Tax value of

Frupurty, Financial and other CATTY-
plant and  Intangikie Employee  esseis ana  lempoary forward
aaupTent assels Leases henet s habilties  dfferences losges Total
£m fm fn £m i £m f£im £
At 12 September 2020 141 eh] {93 (16} {2 {90} (32 (2}
Amount credited to the income statement (36) {6) {8 {1} - 5 2 {44)
Amount credited to equity - - - 108 14 - - 119
Acquired through business combinations - 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of changes in tax rates on the
income statement 29 6 {8 (3} - {5) (4) 17
Effect of changes in tax rates on equity - - - 338 - - - 39
Effact of hypenntlationary econcmigs taken
to operating profit 2 - - - - - - 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 {5} 6 1 - 5] - 9
At 18 September 2021 137 90 {107} 125 12 (84) (34) 145
Amount credited to the income statement 34 {5) 27 1 - 13 8 78
Armount credited tc equity - - - 154 28 2 - 184
Acquired through business combinations - 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effact of changes in 1ax rates on the
ncome statement 2 - - - - - - 2
Effect of changes in tax rates on eguity - - - 44 - - - 44
Effect of hyperinflationary economies taken
1o operating profit 3 - - - - - - 3
Transfer 1o assetsfiabilities held for sale 5 - - - - - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 6 10 {4) - - {8} - 4
At 17 September 2022 187 117 (78) 324 40 {75) {26} 489

Provisions and other temparary differences include provisions of £(93)m (2021 - £{33)m), biclogical assets of £32m {2021 - £29m),
tax credits of £(16)m {2021 ~ £{15)m) and other temporary differences of £2m {2021 - £(5)m).

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes.

2022 2021

£m £
Deferred tax assets {158) {218)
Deferred tax labilities 647 363
489 145

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £bm (2021 — £nil) deferred tax assets classified as assets held for sale {see
note 15).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of £348m {2021 - £310m). Of these tax losses, £188m
{2021 — £170m) will expire at various dates between 2022 and 2027 {2021 - 2021 and 2026). Deferred tax assets have also naot
been recognised in respect of other tempaorary differences of £5616m {2021 - £107m). This includes £378m (2021 - £nul} relating 1o
property, plant and equipment and leases in Germany which were derecognised during the year as a result of the impawment
charge [see notes 9 and 10 for further details), These deferred tax assets have not baen recognised on the basis that their future
aconomic benefit is uncertain.

in addition, the Group's overseas subsidiaries have net unremitted earmings of £2,029m {2021 - £2,537m), resulting in temporary
differences of £1,495m (2021 —~ £1,167m). No deferred tax has been provided in respect of these differences since the timing of
the reversals can be controlled and it /s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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14. Trade and other receivabies

B 2022 2021
£m £rm
Non-current - other receivables

Loans and receivabies 29 32
Other non-current invesimeants 29 23
58 55

Current - trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 1,311 1,021
Other receivables 218 178
Accrued mcome 35 16
’ 1,564 1,215
Prepayments and other nan-financial receivahles 194 152
1,758 1,367

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £3m (2021 — £nil) trade and other receivahles classified as assets held for
sale {see note 15).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximales farr value.
For details of credit nsk exposure on trade and other receivables, see note 26,

Trade and other receivables include £29m (2021 - £32m) in respect of finance lease recevables, with £25m in non-current loans
and receivables and £4m in current other recevables (2021 - £28m in non-current loans and receivables and £4m in current other
receivables). Mirimum lease payments receivable are £4m within one year, £16m hetwesan one and five years and £8m in more
than five years (2027 — f4dm within one year, £17m between one and five years and £41m in more thar five years).

The finance lease receivables relate to property, plant and equipment leased to a jomt venture of the Group (see nate 28).

15. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group currently expents to dispoase of i1s north China sugar business, subject to cornpetition and administrative
requirements. In the prior yvear, held for sale assets and lizbilities related to a Chinese yeast business expectad 1o be seld
to @ Chingse joint venture,

2022 2021
fm et
Assets ¢lassified as held for sale
Intangible assets 12 -
Property, plant and equipment 18 10
Inventories 7 3
Taxation 5 -
Trade and other receivables 3 -
45 13
Liabilities classified as held for sale
Trade and other pavables {14) —
{14) -
31 13
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16. Inventories

2022 2021
£fm £m
Raw materials and consumables 607 411
Wark in progress 70 b5
Finished goods and goods held for resale 2,582 1.685
3,269 2,157
Wirite-down of inventones {115) {95)
In addition to the amounts d'sclosed above, there are £7m {2021 — £3m} of inventories classif:ed as assets held for sale
{s2e note 14,
17. Biological assets
Growing "
cang Othor Total
£rmi £m £rr
AL 1Z September 2020 66 §] 72
Transferred to inventory (92} {13) {105}
Purchases - 1 1
Changes i fair value 105 12 "7
At 18 Septamber 2021 79 6 85
Transferred to inventory t1113) {13} {1260
Purchases - 5 5
Qther disposals - ¥ (1)
Changes in fair valua 124 10 134
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 1 8
At 17 September 2022 97 8 105

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane 15 determined using inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in the
circumstances for valuing the giowing cane and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement. The following
assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 17 Sepiember 2022;

South Africa Malawi Zambia Eswatini Tanzania Mozambique
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 6,028 19,207 16,163 8.419 9,612 5,802
Estimated yield {tonnes cane/hectare) 67.9 103.7 115.9 99.5 726 71.0
Average maturity of growing cane 47.6% 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 46.2% 72.4%

The following assumptions were ysed in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 18 September 2021

South Africa alaw Zambia Eswatiri Tanzanma  Mozambigue

Expected area to harvest (hectaras) 6,363 18,9171 16,584 8,664 9,528 h,b45

Estimated yield {tonnes canefhectare) 66.9 108.4 116.7 102.0 739 33.6

Average matunty of growing cane 48.1% 67.4% 85,7 % 67.7 % 48.2% 71.6%
A 1% change in the unobservable inputs could increase or decrease the fair value of growing cane as follows.

2022 2027

+1% -1% +1% 'S

£m £m Cm £y

Estimatad sucrose cantent 1.2 {1.2) 1.1 n.n

Estimated sucrose price 1.4 {1.4) 1.4 (1.4}

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2322

197



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

18. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
Naote £m frm
Cash
Cash at bank and in hand 674 759
Cash equivalents 1,447 1,516
Cash and cash eguivalents 268 2,121 2,275
Reconciliation to the cash flow statement
Bank overdrafts 19 {126} (86)
Cash and cash eguivalents in the cash {low statement 1,995 2.189
Cash anrd nash eaiivalants on the face of the balance sheet 2121 2,275
2,121 2,275

Cash &t bank and in hand generzlly earns interest at rates based on the applicable daily bank deposit rats,

Cash equivalents generally comprise deposits placad on money markets for perniods of Lp to three months which earn interest at 2
shori-term deposit rate.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value,

19. Loans and overdrafts

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Current loans and overdrafts
Secured loans 1 -
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 156 330
157 330
Nan-gurrent loans
Secured loans - 1
Unsecured loans 480 75
480 76
26 637 4086
2022 2021
Mote £m £ri
Secured loans
« Other floating rate 1 1
Unsecured loans and overdrafts
+ Bank overdrafts 18 126 36
¢ GRP fixed rate 390 80
+ USD flaating rate 8 3
« USD fixed rate 87 217
* EUR floating rate 2 7
+ Other floating rate 13 7
« Other fixed rate 10 5
28 637 406

Secured loans comprise amounts borrawed from commercial banks and are secured by floating charges over the assets of
subsidiaries. Bank averdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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20, Trade and other payables

2022 2021

£m kg

Trade payables 1,362 938
Accruals 1,275 997
2,637 1,935

Deferred income and other nen-financial nayables 477 151
3,114 2,386

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £14m trade and other payables {2021 — £nil) classifiad as lizbilities held for
sale {see note 15},

Far payabias with a remaining Iife of less than one year, carrying amount I1s deemed 1o reflect fair value.

in a small number of businesses, the Group utilises suppher financing arrangements to enable participating suppliers, at each
supplier’s sole discretion, to sell any or all armounts due from the Group to & third party bank earlier than the invoice due date, at
better financing rates than the supplier alone could achieve.

Payment terms for suppliers are identical, irrespective of whether they chocse to participate. The Group receives no benefit from
these arrangeiments,

Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third party bank as akin to
amounts awed 1o the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within trade payables and associated cash flows arc included
within operating cash flows, as they continue to be part of the Group's normal operating cycle.

At year end, the value of invaices sold by supphers under supply chain fiancing arrangements was £45m (2021 - £27m).

21. Provisions

Deferred
Restrociuring  considerdtion Otner Tatai

£ £ir: fiv Crr
At 18 September 2021 52 14 36 102
Created 31 14 i6 61
Utilised {16) 9 (7 132}
Relsased {13) - 19 22)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 1 P 4
At 17 September 2022 55 20 38 113
Current 49 16 22 87
Non-current 8 4 18 26

55 20 38 113

Finanzial liablities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years {see note 26).

Restructuring
Restructuring provisions include business rastructure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Group’s announced
reorganisation plars, These restructuring provisions are largely expected to be utilised in the next finagncial year.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideraticn comprises estimates of amounts due to the previcus owners of businesses acquired by the Group which
are often Inked to performance or other conditions,

Other

Other provisions manly comprise litigation claims and warranty claims arising from the sale and closure of businesses. The extent
and uming of the utilisation of thase provisions is more uncertair given the nature of the claims and the period of the warranties.
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22, Share capital and reserves

Share capital

At 18 September 2021 and 17 September 2022, the Company's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 791,674,183 ordinary
shares of 3'%.p, each carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £45m,

Other reserves

£173m of other reserves arose fram the cancellatior: of share premium account by the Comipany in 1893, £2m arase in 2010 as a
transfer to capital redempiion reserve following redemption of twe million £1 deferred shares at par. The remaining £3m comprises
a £4m unrealised gain on investments held at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of £1m deferrad tax. All are
regarded as non-distributabla.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences alising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve camprises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent that they are sffective cash flow hadges, net of
amounts recycled fram the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged transaction or when the hedged transaction is no longer
expected 1o occur,

23. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2022

In January, the Group acguired 100% of Fytexia, a B2B specalty ingredients business in Franice and ltaly producing and formulating
polyphenols-based active ingredients for the dietary supplaments industry. This acquisition will expand the Group's portfolio of
products and capabilities 1o sefving the pharmaceutical, nutritional and food market sactors.

I July, the Group acquired Greencoat, a UK-based animal supplement and care business. This acquisition contributes to AB Agn's
strategic goal to expand its international animal nutrition ana technology business.

During the year, the Group also acguired a small grocery company in New Zealand, a small agriculture business in Finland and a
smali inrgredients business in Australia. The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilimes:

Pre- Recognsed valles 0n acquistion
SCQUIERT-An
carrying
val.es Fytexia Groeenceat Other Tatal
£rr £rm £m £m fir
Net assets
Intangible assets - 54 27 7 838
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 14 1 1 12 14
Working capital 17 3 11 1 25
Cash and overdrafts 10 6 1 3 10
Loans {231 (113 3 (9 {23)
Lease labilities (8 - - (8) {8)
Frovisions 7 {7} - - {7
Taxation (8 114} (3} {2) (24)
Net identifiable assets and lizbilities {5) 32 29 14 75
Goodwill Gl 12 12 85
Total consideration 93 41 26 160
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Reccgrised

values on
acguisition
£

Satistied by
Cash consideration 153
Deferred consideration . /
B 160

Nei cash

Cash consideration 153
Cash and cash equivalents acquired o {10}
143

Fre-acquisition carrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acguisition apart frem £88m of non-operating intangibles
in respect of brands, technology and customer relationships, an £8m uplift to inventery, @ £16m related deferred tax lisbility and
goadwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joint vantures and associates of £154m comprised £153m cash
consideration less £10m cash and averdrafts acquired, £7m of deferred consideration relating 1o previous acquisitions and a £4m
contribution to an existing jont venture in China.

2021

in the prior penod, the Group's ingrediants business acquired DR Healthcare Espana, a Spanish enzymes producer. Total
consideration for this transact:on was £14m, comprising £12m cash consideration and £2m deferred consideration. Net assets
acguired ncluded non-operating intangible assats of £19m, which were recognised with their relsted deferred tax of £56m.

The Group also contributed £43m to the bakery ingredients joint venture in China with Wilmar Intermnational and paid £2m of
deferred consideration on acquisitions made in prior years.

Disposals

2022

The pronosed sale of a yeast company to the |oint venture with Wilmar International in China (classified as held for sale at the 2021
year end) 15 not going ahead, The £10m ron-cash impairment reversed in 2027 through profit/{loss) on sale and closure of business
has bean reinstated at a cost of £11m,

The Group's investment in north China Sugar is classified as held-for-sale at year end and an associated £19m non-cash write-down
has been chargad to loss on sale and closure of business,

The Group also released £3m of closure provisions in Viverge in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no langer required for a
disposed Ingredients busmess in the United Statas.

2021

The Group sald a number of Chinese yeast and bakery ingredients bDusinesses into a naw Chinese joint venture with Wiimar
Internaticnal. Gross cash consideration was £39m with £5m of cash disposed with the businessas. The jaint venture also assumed
£11m of debt, resulting in net proceeds of £45m, Net assets disposaed were £33m with provisions of £6m for associated
restructuring costs and a £68m gain on the recycling of foreign exchange differences. The gain on disposal was £6m.

The Group agread the sale of a factory in China to the same joint venture, subject to regulatory approval. These assets were fully
written down in 2013 when the propesed joint venture with Wilmar was first announced. A non-cgsh reversal of impairment of
£10m was included in profit on sale and clasure of husiness. This was reversed in 2022 {see abova),

Closure provisions of £3m relating to disposals made in previous years were no tonger required and were released to sale and

closure of business in Ingredients and Grocery, both in Asia Pacific. Property provisicns of £1m held in previous years were also no
longer reguired and were released in the Central and UK segments,
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24, Share-based payments

The annual charge in the income statemant for equity-settled share-based payments schemes was £19m (2021 - £17m). The
Group had the following principal equity-setiled share-based payment plans in operation during the period

Associated British Foods 2016 Long-term Incentive Plan {‘the 2016 LTIP')

The 2016 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Company at the AGM held on 9 December 2018. [t takes the form of conditional
allocations of shares which are released if, and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied, typicalty over a three-year
vesting period.

Associated British Foods 2016 Short-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2016 STIP)

The 2016 STIP was approved and adopted by the Board on 2 November 2016. i takes the form of conditional allocations of shares
witich are released at the end of a three-year vesting period if, and to the extent that, performance targets are satished, over a
one-year performance period.

Further information regarding the operation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 126 1o 153

Tatal conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

Balarce Balance
autstarding at ouistandirg
the bag nn'ng Granted/ at the end

af the parod awarded Vested Cxpirediapsed of tr2 period
2022 5,419,237  2,445814 (718,180} {1,066,861) §£,090,00%
2027 5,030,360 2,498,918 (440,870) {1,669,171) 5419.237

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to allocation under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are held in a separate Employee Share
Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Campany. Voting nights attached to shares held by the Trust are exercisable by the trustee,
who is entitled to consider any recommendation made by a committee of the Company. At 17 September 2022 the Trust held
3,042,132 {2020 - 1,347,089) ordinary shares cf the Company. The market value of these shares at the year end was £40m {2021
— £25m). The Trust has warved 1ts nght to dividends. Maovaments in the year were a release of 718,185 shares and the purchase of
2,413,228 shares {2021 - release of 440,870 shares).

Fair values

The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by taking the market price of the shares at the tima of
grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesting penod. The weighted average fair value of the
conditional shares allocated during the year was 1,837p {2021 — 1,879p) and the weighted average share price was 1,97bp (2021

- 2,0270). The dividend yield used was 2.5% (2021 - 2.5%).
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25, Analysis of net debt

At Have laases At

18 Septanmbet Acguisitions  zre non-cash Exchange 17 September

2021 Cash flow  and dienosals iten's  adjustments 2022

£ fm ni £rm 1 £m

Short-terim leans {244) 12 (23) 224 - (31}

Long-term loans (78) (178! - (224) {2) {480}

Lease liahilities {3,281) 321 8} {188) (98} {3,252)

Total liahilities from financing activities (3,601 155 {31} (186} {100} (3,763}
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and

overdrafts 2,189 (268) - 74 1,995

Current asset investments L {30 - - 2 4

{1,380) (142) {31 {186) {24) {1,764}

I feeny leases - At

12 Sectamber Aeqaiziniens  and nar-cash =xchange 18 September

2020 Cash flow  and cisnoszls tams  agjusiments 2021

£ fm £rmi fm fm £m

Shart-term loans B5) 10 10 {202} 3 (244)

Long-term loans {318) 18 202 22 (76)

L aase liahilities 3,639) 290 - {100) 168 (3,281)

Total labilities from financing activities 4,022} 318 10 {100) 193 13,601}
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and

overdrafts 1,909 340 - - (80) 2,189

Current asset iInvestmenis 32 2 - - 2) 32

{2,081} 660 10 {100) 131 {1,380)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash balances, deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three
maonths or less. £128m (2021 - £86m) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form part of the Group's cash management
and are included as 5 component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement (see note 18 for a

recanailiation.

MNet cash excluding laase liabilities is £1,488m (2021 - £1,901m).

£126m (20271 - £88m) of bank overdrafts plus the £31m {2021 - £244m) of short-term loans shown above comprise the £157m
(2021 = £330m) of current loans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet.

Current and non-current lease liabilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £316m and £2,936m raspeactively (2021 —
£289m and £2,982m respeactively) comprise the £3,252m {2021 - £3,281m) of lease liabdities shown above.

Current asset investmentsa comprise term deposits and short-term invastments with original maturities of greater than

three months.

Interest paid is included within financing activities. The roll-forward of the liabilities associated with interest paid 1S an opening
balance of £{20)m, expense of £(111}m, payments of £114m, fx of £{1Jm and a closing balance of £(18)m {2021 - opening balance
of £(23Im, expense of £{111}m, payments of £116m, tx of £{2Im and & closing balance of £{20)m),
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26, Financial instruments

Financial nstruments include £3rm {2021 - £nil) of trade and other receivables and £14m {2021 - £nil} of trade and other

payahles which are classified as held for sale {see note $5). All disclosures in this note are given gross, before the held-for-sale

reclassification is made.

a) Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

2022 2021
£m £

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash eqguivalents 2,121 2,275
Current asset iInvestments 4 32
Trade and other receivzbles 1.567 1215
Uther non-current receivahles 29 32
At fair value through other comprehensive ingome
investrments 29 23
At fair value through profit or loss
Derivative assets not designated in a cash flow hadging relationship:
« currency dernvatives (excluding cross-cutrency swaps) 50 a
» commeodity denvatives 3 -
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative assets designated and effsctive as cash flow hedging instruments
« currency derivatives (excluding cross-currency swaps) 70 22
' Cross-cufrancy swaps 29 44
» commadity derivatives 323 49
Total financial assets 4,225 3,701
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payahles {2,651) {1,935}
Secured loans (1) {1
Unsecured lpans and overdrafts (fair value 2022 - £571m; 2021 — £417m) {6386) {105}
Lease labilities {fair value 2022 - £3,471m, 2021 ~ £3,293m) (3,252) {3,281
Deterred consideratian (20) (14}
At fair value through profit or loss
Detivative habilittes nat designated in a cash flow hedging refstionship:
+ currency derivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps! (5) {1)
« commodity derivatives (3) -
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivative liabilities designated as net investment hedging mstruments:
*+ CTOSS-CUTENncY SwWaps {7 (12
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative habilities designated and effective as cash flow hedging instruments:
« currency derivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps) {17} {5)
« intarest denvatives {3) -
» commadity detivatives {170) 16)
Total financial liabilities {6,765) {5,670
Net financial liabilities {2,540) {1,969}

Except where stated, carrying amount is equal to fair value.
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Valuation of finangial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments carried at far value on the balance sheet comprise derivatives and investments. Tha Group classifias these
financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the relative significance of both objective evidence and subjective

judgements on the inputs used I Making the fair value measurements:

« Level 1 fmancial instruments are valuad using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted guoted market prices In an active market

for identical instruments. An example of an item in this categary 1s a widely traded equity instrument with a narmal quoted

market price.

» Level 2: financial instruments are valued using technigques basad on observable npuis, either directly {l.e. market prices and
rates] or indirectly {1.e. derived from market prices and rates). An example of an item in this category is a currency derivative,

wherg forward exchange rates and yield curve data, which ara chservable in the market, are used to derive fair value.
+ Lavel 3: financial instruments are valued using techrugues involving significant unobservahle inpuis.

h) Derivatives

All derivatives are classified as current on the face of the balance sheet. The table below analyses the carrying amount of
dervatives and their cantractualmotional amounts, together with an analysis of denvatives by the level in the fair value hierarchy

Into which their fair value measurement method is categorised.

2022 2021
Contractual/ Sentractual/ T
notional notienal
amounts Level t Level 2 Tatal 2Mednts Level 1 Lavel 2 Totad
£m £m £m £m £i £m £m fim
Financial assets
Currency denvativas
{excluding cress-currency swaps) 2,193 - 120 120 1,360 - cY 31
Cross-currency swaps 94 - 29 29 228 - 44 a4
Carmmodity derivatives 439 3 323 326 188 4 45 49
2,726 3 472 475 1,776 4 120 124
Financial liabilities
Currency derivatives
{excluding cross-currency swaps) 921 - {22} (22) 702 - {6) {6)
Cross-currency swaps 68 - (7 {7} 158 - {12 12)
Interestrate swaps 400 - (3} (3) - - - -
Commodity dervatives 366 - {173) {173) 166 (1) {15} {16)
1,755 - (205) {205) 1,064 {1} (33) (341
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26. Financial instruments continued

¢) Cash flow hedging reserve
The following table identifies the movermnents in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the periods in which the cash
flows are expected 1o occur. The perods in which the cash flows are expected to impact protit or lass arc materially the same.

2022 2121
Currency Cutrency -
derivatives derivatives
{excluding Cross- {=xcl.d ng Cross
eross-  curréncy Interest Commodity eross-  ourrency Interast  Conuned by
currency) swaps derivatives  derivatives Total catrenty) swaps  detivatives  denvatves Total
£m £m Em £m £m £ £m fm £ f£im
Opening balance {14) (n - (28) {43} 6 {1 - 2 7
{Gains)/losses recognised
in the hedging reserve {295) {20} 3 (234) (5486) 3 16 - (55) {36)
Amount remaoved from
the hedging reserve and
included in the income
statement.
« revanue 5 - - {4) 1 8 - - {4) 4
» cost of sales - - - 105 105 ~ - - 9 9
¢ other financial expense/
fincome) - 21 - - 21 - (16) - - {16}
Amount removed from
the hedging reserve and
included in a non-financial
asset:
« nventory 258 - - 22 280 (37) - - 12 {25)
Deferred tax 5 - {1 24 28 &) - - 8 14
Closing halance {41) - 2 {115) ({154) {14) (n - {(28) {43)
Cash flows are expected
to ocour:
« within six months {36) - 2 {105} {139) {9} - - {25} 134}
« between six months
and one year {6) - - (10} {16) {4 - - {2) B
« between one and two
years 1 - - - 1 i — = {1) {2
« between two and five
years - - - - - - {1 - - (1)
{41) - 2 (115) {154} {14 (1) — (28) 143)

Of the closing balance of £(154m, £{184)m is attributable 1o equity shareholders and £nif to non-cantrolling interests

{2027 — £443Im, £{413)m atiributable to equity shareholders and £nil to non-controlling interests). Of the net movement in the
year of £(111)m, £1111hm is attributable to equity shareholders and £nil to non-controlling interests {2021 — £150im, £{60IM
attributable to equity shareholders and £nil to non-controlling interests).

The balance remaming in the commeodity cash flow hadge raserve from hedaing relationships for which hedge accounting is no
longer applied is £1m {2021 — £{1)m}.

The balance in the cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 18 Septermber 2021 or 17 September 2022,

d} Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed to the fellowing financial risks from the use of financial mstruments:

* market risk; and
» credit risk.

The Group's financial risk management process sesks to enable the early identfication, evaluation and effective management

of key risks facing the business. Risk management paolicies and sysiems have been established and are reviewed regularly o
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through 1ts standards and procedures, aims to develop
a disciphined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many tocations around the world. These operations expose
the Group to patentially significant price volatility in the financial and commaodity markets. Risk management teams have been
astahlished to manage this exposure by entering into a range of products, including physical and financial forward contracts,
futures, swaps. and, where appropriate, options. These teams work closely with Group Traasury and report regularly to
axecutive management,
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Treasury activities and commodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined framework of Board-spproved
policies and guidelines to manage the Group’s financial and commodity risks. Group Treasury works closely with the Group's
procurernent teams to manage commodity nisks, Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available at all tirmes for the management and development of the Group's businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk
and credit nsk. The Group's risk management palicy expheitly forbids the use of financial or commaodity dernvatives (outside 1ts risk
management framework of mitigating financial and commadity risks) for speculative purposes.

e} Foreign currency translation

The Group presents its financial statements in sterling. As a result of its worldwide operations, the Group is exposed ta fareign
currency ranslation risk whers overseas operations have a functional currency other than sterling. Changes in foreign currency
gxchange rates impact the translation into sterling of beth the income statement and net assets of these foreign aperations.

The Group finances its operations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its operations and where appropriate, by
borrowing locally in the same functional currency. This reduces net asset values reported in functional currencies other than
sterling, theraeby reducing the acanomic expaesure to fluctuations 1n foreign currency exchange rates on translation.

The Group also finances 1ts operations by abtaining funding at Group level through external borrowings and, where they are notin
sterling, these borrowings may be designated as net investment hedges. This enables gains and losses arising on retranslation ot
these foreign currency borrowings to be charged to other comprehensive income, providing a parzal offset in equity against the
gains and losses ansing on translation of the net assets of foreign cperations. At yvear end, the Group had no borrewings (2021

— nonej that were designated as hedges of its net investment in foreign cperations.

The Group also halds cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debt. These are reported as cash flow
hedges and net invastment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument, to the degree effective, is retained in other
comprehensive income. Under IFRS 9, the currency basis on the cross-currency swaps 1s excluded from the hedge designation and
recognisad in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The value of the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is
measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The hypothetical derivative is based on the critical terms of the debt and
therefora the only ineffectiveness that might arise is in relation to credit risk. Credit risk 1s monitored regularly and is not a
significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group fdoes not actively hedge the translation impact of foreigh exchange rate movements or the income statement (other
than wia the partial economic hedge asising from the servicing costs on nen-sterling borrowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan anangemenis as guasli-eguity for the purposes of IAS 21, The effect of the
designation is that any foreign exchange volatility arising within the borrowing entity and/or the lending entity is accounted for
directly within other comprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange £n:l (2027 — £nil) on retranslation of these loans nas been taken to the translation reserve on consolidaton,
alt of which was attributable 1o equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-currency swaps that have been designated as
hedges of its net investments in euros, whose change in fair value of £1m has been debited to the translation reserve, all of which
was attributable ta equity shareholders {2021 — £14m has baen credited to the transfation reservel.

f) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of moverments in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument or forecast transaction as
underlying market prices change. The Group is exposad to changes in the market price of commedities, interest rates and foreign
axchange rates. These risks are known as ‘transaction’ {or recognised) exposures and ‘economic’ {or forecast) exposures.

{i) Commodity price risk
Commodity price nisk arises from the procurement of raw materials and the conseguent exposure 1o changes in market prices.

The Group purchases & wide range of commadities in the ordinary course of business. Exposure to changes in the market price of
certain of these commoditias including sugar raws, energy, wheat, edible oils, soya beans, tea, lean hog, cocoa and rice is
managed through the use of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primartly to
convert floating prices to fixed prices. The use of such contracts 1o hedge commodity exposures 1s governed by the Group's risk
management policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury. Commeodity derivatives also provide a way to meet
customars’ pricing reguiraments whilst achieving a price structure consistent with the Group’s overall pricing strategy.
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26. Financial instruments continued

Some of the Group's commadity forward contracts are classitied as “own use' contracts, since thay are entered inte, and continue
o be hald, for the purposes ot the Group's ordinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical delivery of the commodity
concearned. Own use contracts do not raquire accounting entries until the commodity purchase actually crystallises. Where
possible, other commodity denvatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges {typically with a one-to-one hedge ratio), but there are
some commodity derivativaes far which the strnici requiremernts of hedge accounting cannet be satisfied. Such commodity
derivatives are used only where the business believes they provide an economic haedge of an underlying exposure. These
instruments are classified as held for trading and are marked to market through the income statement.

The majonty of the Group's forward physical contracts and commodity derivatives have maturities of less than one year.

The Group's sensitivities in respect of commeadity derivatives for @ +/~ 20% moverment in underlying commedity prices are £62m
(20271 = £24m) and £(57Im (2021 — £(24im), respectively.

{ii} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises two pnimary elemeants:

« ntarasi price risk results from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates therefore affect
the fair value of these financial instruments; and

* interest cash flow risk results fram financial instruments beaning floating rates. Changes i floating interest rates affect cash
flows on Interest receivable or payable.

The Group's pelicy 1s 16 manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant changs in interest
rates does not have a maisral negative impact on the Group's cash flows.

At 17 September 2022, £487m (76%) (2021 - £303m and 75%) of total debt was subject to fixed rates of interest, the majority of
which is the 2034 public bond, Floating rate debt comprises ather bank borrowings bearing interest razes for various time periads
up to 12 manths, by reference to the relevant market rate for the currency and location of the borrowing.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current asset investments are subject to floating rates of interest, typically fixed for
perinds up to 2 months by reference to the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing or invesiment.

£400m of 12-month sterling interest rate swaps have bsen entered inta so that the floating interest rate received on an eguivalent
balance of the Group’s cash and cash eguivalents s fixed for the 1Z-month period to August 2023.

{iii) Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and consequently in many foreign currencies. As a result, it 1s exposed to movemeants in
toreign currency exchange rates which affect the Group's transaction costs. The Group alse publishes its financial statements in
sterling and is therefore expased to mavements in foreign exchange rates on the transiation of the results and underlying net
assets of its foreign operations into sterhing.

Translation risk s discussed i section e} on page 207,

Transaction risk

Currency transaction expasure occurs where a business makes sales and purchasas in a currency other than its functional
currency. It also arises whare monetary assets and liabilties of a business are not denominated in its functional currency, and
where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's policy 1s to match transaction exposures wherever
possible, and to hedge actual expesures and firm commitments as soon as thay occur by using forward foreign currency contracts,

The Group uses dervatives (principalty forwerd foreign currernicy contracts and time options) to hedge its exposure to movements
in exchange rates on its foreign currency trade recevables and payables. The Group does not seek formal fair value hadge
accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead, such derivatives are classified as held for trading and marked to market through
the income statement. This offsets the Income statement impact of the retranslation of the foreign currency trade receivables
and payables.

Economic {forecast) risk

The Group principally uses forward Toreign currency contracts to hedge 1ts exposure to moverments in exchange rates on its highly
probabie forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on a rolling 12-month basis. The Group does not formally define the
proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agreas an appropriate percentage on an individual basis
with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and prevailling markat conditions. The Group designates
currency derivatives used to hedge its highly probable forecast transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS 9, the spot
component is designated in the hedging relationship and forward points and currency basis are excluded and recognised in other
comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The cost of hedging value during the period and at the balance sheet date was not
matsrial. The economic refationship is based on critical terms and a one-to-cne hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges
are effective, gains and losses are deferred in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are
recycled either to the income statement or to the non-tinancial asset acquired.

The majority of the Group's currency derivatives have original maturities of less than one vear.
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The Group’s most significant currency transaction exposures are:

« sourcing for Primark — costs are denominated in a number of currencies, predominantly sterling, euros and US dollars.
+ sugar sales in British Sugar to movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate.

Elsewhere, a number of businesses make sales and purchase a variety of raw matarials in foreign currencies {primarily US dollars
and euros), giving rise to transaction exposures. In all other material respects, businesses tend to operate in their functional
currencies.

The table below illustrates the effacts of hedge accounting an the consolidated balance sheet and consclidated income

statement by digclosing separately by risk category, and gach type of hedge, the detalls of the associated hedging instrument
and hedged item.

2022

Change in fair Change in fair

Carrying value of hedging value of hedged

amount  Furthest instrument used to itam used to

Contract assets/  maturity  Hedge determine hedge  determine hedge

notional ({liabilities) date ratic ineffactivaness effactiveness
Em £m £m % Em £m
Current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
« currency derivatives (excluding cross-currency
SWaps) 2,102 54 Sep23 100% 54 {54)
+ commodity derivatives 739 152 Aug 23 100% 152 (152)
* interest rate swap 400 (3) Aug23 100% (3) 3
Non-current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships.
 currency dervatives (excluding cross-currency
Swaps) 32 {1) Sep24 100% {1) 1
¢ Cross-CUrrency SWaps 94 29 Mar24 100% 14 (14}
« commadity derivatives 20 1 Jan24 100% 1 {1)
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
« currency derivatives (Cross-curency swaps) 68 {7) Mar24 100% (3} 3
2021
Change i farr Change m farr
Carrying value of hedg ng value of redged
amodrt  Fuithest irstrurmnent Lsed to tem used o
Centract Fssets/  maturry Hadge determrine hedgae aetermineg hedgs
notiotal  shabilitiss) date atio ingfectivenasy effectiven=ss
£m m fm . Lrr £m
Current
Designated cash flow hedging relaticnships:
« currency dervatives {excluding cross-currency
swaps) 1,367 16 Sep22  100% 16 {16)
* CrOSS-CLiTENTY SWaps 150 28 Mar22  100% (11} "
* commaodity derivatives 350 33 Aug 22 100% 34 {34}
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
+ currency derivatives (cross-currency swaps) 129 (8 Mar 22 100% 10 (10}
Non-current
Desigrated cash flow hedging relationships:
» currancy denvatives (excluding cross-currency
swaps) 34 1 Dec22 100% 1 {1
* CrOSS-CUITency swaps 78 16 Mar 24 100% {6} 6
« commadity dervatives 4 - Jan 23 100% - -
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
+ currency derivatives (Cross-currency swaps) 67 (4) Mar 24 100% 5 (5)
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26. Financial instruments continued

Hedging relationships are typically based on a one-te-one hadge ratio. The economig refationship between the hedged item and the
hadging instrument is analysed on an ongoing basis. Sources of possible ineffectiveness include changes in forecast transactions
as a result of timing or value or, 1 certain cases, different indices iinked to the hedged item and the hedging instrument. As at 17
September 7022, £2,134m of forward foreign currency contracts designated as cash flow hedges were outstanding (2021 -
£1,401m), largely in relation to purchases of USD {£1,453m) and sales of EUR (E214m) with varying maturities up to September
2024. Weighted average hedge rates for these contracts are GEPUSD 1.21, EURUSD: 1.04 and GBPEUR: 1.18. Weighted averagse
hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and GBPEUR: 1.26. Commadity derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges related to a range of underlving hedged items, wath varying maturities up to January 2024,

The analysis of the Group's foreign curiency exposure to financial assets and liablites by currency of denomination is as fallows:

2022
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total

£m £m £m £m fm
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 18 10 38 127
Trade and other receivables - 55 54 24 133

1 133 64 62 260

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {29) (512) [38) (17) {596}
Unsecuraed loans and overdrafts — (90) - - {90}

{28) (602) (38) {17} {686}
Currency derivatives
Gross amounts receivable 93 2,143 a8 256 2,590
Gross amounts payable {2) {202) {428) {67) {689}

91 1,941 {330) 199 1,901

63 1,472 {304) 244 1,475

2021
Srarhng US cellar Curg Other Toial

£ £im £ £ £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 g1 22 43 144
Trade and other receivables - 39 45 19 103

1 120 67 58 247

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {19) 1381 {36} (8} (444)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts - (218) - (3} (221}

(19) {559) {36} (11} {(G65)
Currency derivatives
Gross amounts receivable 82 1,374 187 221 1,854
Gross amounts payable (2} {133) (431} {50} (618}

&80 1,241 {234} 171 1,238

42 762 (203} 219 820
The following major exchange rates applied during the year

Average rate Clasing rate
2022 20 2022 2021

US dollar 1.29 1.37 1.14 1.38
Euro 1.18 1.14 1.14 1.17
Austrahan dollar 1.80 1.82 1.70 1.89

The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact that a 10% strengthening of the Group's transactional currencies against
tocal funcuional currencies would have had on profit and equity, The analysis covers currency translation expasures at year end on
businesses' financial assets and liabilities that are not denominated in the functional currencies of those businesses. A similar but
oppasite impact would be felt on both profit and eguity if the Group's main operating currencies weakened against local funcuonal
currencies by a similar amount.

The exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses on translating the financial statements of subsidianes into sterling 1s not
ncluded in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income statement, and the gains and losses are recorded directly
in the {ranslation reserve in equity (see below for a separate sensitivityl. This sensitivity is presented before taxation and non-
controlling interests.

210 Assaciated British Foods plc Annual Report 2022



Sensitivity analysis

2022 2022 20 2021

impact on impact on BTNact on Irmpact on

profit for total profit for total

the period equity the nenad squty

10 strengthering against other currencies of £m £m £rm £rm
Sterling - 8 - 5
US dollar 19 172 {2 87
Euro {19} (41) 12 (24}
Other 16 22 12 24

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Graup’s profit before tax 1f the average rates used to translate the results
of the Group's foreign operations inte sterling were adjusted to show a 10% strengthenring of sterling. A similar but opposite
impact weould be falt oh profit before tax if sterling weakened against the other currencies by a similar amount.

2022 2023

impact on mpact o

profit for prof for

the period the ceriod

107 stengihering of steriing 2ga nst £fm £
US dollar (13) Gy
Eura {3) 3
Australian dollgr (6} (4

g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties (o financial transactions can not perform accordmg to the terms of the contract. The
Group's businasses are principally exposed to counterparty credit nsk when dealing with their customers, and from ccrtain
financing activities.

The immediate credit exposure of financial derivatives is represented by those financial derivatives that have a net positive fair
value by counterparty at 17 Sepiembear 2022, The Group considers i1s maximum expaosure to credit risk to be:

2022 2021

£m fm

Cash and cash aguivalents 2121 2,275
Current asset ihvestments 4 32
Trade and other receivables 1,567 1,215
Other nan-current recevables 29 32
Investments 29 23
Dervative assats at fair value through profit and loss h3 9
Derivative assets in designated cash flow hedging relationships o 415 103
4,218 3,689

The significant majonty of cash balances and short-term depasits are held with strong investment-grade banks or
financial institutions.

The Group uses changes in credit ratings and other metrics to identify significant changes to the financial profile of
its counterparties,
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26. Financial instruments continued

Counterparty risk profile and management
The table below analyses the Group's current assel investments, cash equivalents and derivative assets by credit @xposure:

2022
- Derivatives
Currency Cross-
Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments  equivalents assets swaps Commeodities Total
L ang-tesnt 1ssaer rating £m £m £m £m £m £m
AN - 299 2 - 10 311
A 4 955 103 22 - 1,084
BBB - 157 - - - 157
BB - 9 - - - 9
B - 16 - - - 16
Nat rated - 11 — - 315 326
Totai 4 1,447 105 22 325 1,903
2021
e Derivatives
Currency Cross-
Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments equivalents assels swaps Commodities Total
Long-te-rm iss.ter rating £m £m £m £m £m £m
Ak 28 27 - - 2 53
A 3 1,148 21 27 1 1,200
BEB - 318 3 5 - 327
BB = i9 - - - 19
B - 8 _ - - g
Nat rated — - - - 37 37
Total 32 1,516 24 32 40 1,644

in the current year, we have included cash equivalents in the above disclosure and have re-prasented the prior year comparatives
on a consistent basis.

Cash of £674m {2021 — £759m) has been excludad from this analysis as the balances are avallable on demand.

Trade and other receivables

Significant concentrations of credit risk are very limited as a result of the Group's large and diverse customer base. The Group has
an established credit policy applied by each business under which the credit status of each new customer is reviewed before credit
is advanced. This includes extarnal credit evaluations where possible and 1n some cases bank references. Credit imits are
astablished tor all significant or high-risk customers, which represent the maxirnum amount permitted to be outstanding without
requiring additional approval from the appropriate level of managemeant, Qutstanding debts are continually monitored by each
husiness. Cradit limits ars reviewsad on a regular basis, and at least annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark
creditworthiness may only transact on a prepayment basis. Aggregaie exposdras are monitored at Group level,

Many customars have bean transacting with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debts has been low. VWhere
appropriate, goods are sold subjact 1o retention of utle so that, in the event of non-payment, the Group may have a secured claim,
Tne Group doas not typically require callateral in respect of trade and cther receivables.

The Group provides for impairment of financial assats including trade and other receivables based on known events, and
makeas a collective provision for losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majority of the provision comoprises
specific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, gross trade receivables are assassed regularly by @ach business locally with reference 10
considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographucal location of each customer, and
days past due (where applicable),

Expected lossss are determined basad on the historical experience of write-offs compared to the level of trade receivables. These
historical loss expectations are adjusted for current and forward-looking information where 1115 identified to be significani. The
Group considers faciors such as national economic outlooks and bankruptey rates of the countries in which 1ts goods are sold to be
the most relevant factors, Where the impact of these 1s assessed as significant, the histoncal loss expectations are amended
accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk 1o have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over and expects these debts 10 he
provided for in full. Where the Group holds insurance or has a legal nght of offset with debtors who are also creditors, the loss
expactation 15 applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure,

Trade recewvables are written off when there 1s no reasonable expectation of recovery, indicators of wnich may include the failure
of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past due.
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The maximum exposurs to credit risk for trade and athar receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of origin was:

2022 2021
fm £m
UK 579 442
Europe & Atrica 385 306
The Americas 230 164
Asia Pacific 373 303
T T 1,567 1,215
Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:
2022 2021
£m £m
Not overdus 1,129 899
Up to one month past due 137 100
Between one and two months past due 31 16
Between two and three months past due 10 4]
More than three moenths past dus i 24
Expected 038 provision 27) (24)
o 1,311 1,021
Trade receivables are stated net of the foliowing expected loss provision:
2022 7021
£m o
Opening balance 24 27
Increase charged to the income statement 6 4
Amounts released {4) i2}
Amounts written off {1 (3)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 2 {2}
Closing balarice 27 24

No trade receivables were written off directly to the income statement in either year,

The geographical and business line complexity of the Group, combinad with the fact that expected credit toss assessments are all
performad Incally, means that it is not practicahle to prasant further analysis of expected credit logses.

in relation to other raceivables nat forming part of trade recervables, @ similar approach has been taken to a55ess expected credit
losses. No significant expected cradit loss has been identifiad.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates farr value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Barking relationships are generally selected for therr credit status, giobal reach and their ability to meet the businesses’ day-to-day
banking requireamants. The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Operating procedures including
choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be agreed with Group Treasury. The Group has not
recorded impalrments against cash or cash eguivalents, nor have any recoverability issues beean identified with such balances.

h} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Group will encounter ditficuity in meeting its cbligations associated with 1ts financ:al habilites as
they fall due. Group Traeasury is responsibla for monitoring and maraging liquidity and ensures that the Group has sufficiant
headroom in its committed faciliies to meeat unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has access to uncommitted
facilities to assist with shert-term funding requirements.

Availablz headroom 13 monitored via the use of detailed cash flow forecasts prepared by each business, which are reviewed
at least quarterly, or maore often, as required. Actual results are compared to budget and forecast each penod, ard vanances
investigatad and explained. Particular focus is given to management of working capital.

The Board's treasury policies are in place t¢c mantain a strong capital base and manage tha Group's balance sheet to ensure
long-term financial stability. This includes mamntaining access 1o significant total liquidity comprised of both net cash and undrawn
committed credit facilities. Thaese policies are the basis for investor, craditor and market confidence and enable the successful
development of the busmess.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given in section i) on page 214,

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022 213



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments continued

The following lahle analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liahilities ai the balance sheet date and
compares them to carrying amounts:

2022
Due Due Due
between between between
Due within 6 months 1and 2 2and5  Due after Contracted Carrying
6 months and 1 year years years 5 years amount amount
Nota £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payablas 20 {2,623) (28) - - - (2,651} {2,651
Secured loans 19 - n - - - {1} (1)
Unsecured loans and overdrafis 19 {153) (17 (103) (31) (470) {774} {636)
Lease liabilities 10 {197) {214) {409) {1,115) {2.400) {4,335) {3.252)
Deterred consideration 21 {4} {12) {1) {3) - (20} {20)
Derivative financial liabilities
« Currency derivatives (excluding cross-
currency swaps) (net payments| {15) {2} (M - - {18} (22}
= Commodity derivativas (net payments) {170} {1 {2) - - {(173) {173}
* Interest rate derivatives (net payments) {3) - - - - {3) {3)
Total financial liabilities {3,165} {275) {516) {1,149} {2,870} {7,975) (6,758)
o 2021
Due Cue Hue
between batwsaer panyvaen
Due wathin 6 rronths 1and 2 Zand b Dug after  Cortracted Carrvirg
B mening and * wvaar V3375 yoars byeas Aot Emount
MNote £m £m frr e £m £im £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 {1,915} (20} - - - {1,935) {1,838)
Secured loans 19 - 1 - - (1] i
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 19 (320 {9) 113 (751 - {417 {4085)
Lease liahilities 10 {173} {(189) {381) {1.048) {2 815} {d 306) 13,287)
Deaferred consideration 27 {6 - {8) - - (14] (14
Derivative financial liabilities
« Currency derivatives (excluding cross-
currency swaps) (net payments) {5) (2} - - - {7} 8}
» Commodity derivatives {net payments) (12} 4} - - - &) (18}
Total financial liabilities [2,43M (224) 1403) 11,123} {2,515) (B3,6986) {5,658)

The above tables do not include torecast data for liabilities which may be incurred in the future but which were not contracted
at 17 Sepiamber 2022,

The principal reasans for differences between carrying valuas and cantractuzal undiscounted cash flows are coupon payments on
the fixed rate debt 10 which the Group 1s slready committad, furure interest payments on the Group’s lease labilities, and cash
flows on derivative financial instruments which are not aligned with therr fair value.

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing facilites available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at 17 September 2022, in
raspect of which all conditions precedent have heen meat, amounted to £1,567m (2021 — £1,14bm}:

2022 201

Facility DPrawn Undrawn Fac'lity Drawn Undrawn

£m £m £m im £m £rm

Committed Revolving Credit Facility 1,500 - 1,500 1,088 - 1,088
Public Bond due in 2034 390 390 - - - -
US orivate placemeant 87 87 - 297 257 -
lllovo 77 12 65 65 10 55
Other 9 7 2 3 1 2
2,063 496 1,567 1,453 308 1,145
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Uncommitied facilities avallable at 17 September 2022 were.

2022 2021 o
Facility Drawn Undrawn Facil ty BRI Undrawn
£m fm £m £ frr £m
Moneymarket ihas 100 - 100 100 - 100
lHlovo 188 99 89 157 83 94
Azucarera 36 2 34 30 S 25
China 39 - 39 37 - 37
Other 162 40 122 161 30 1271
525 141 384 485 a8 387

In addition to the above facllitics there are also £114m {2021 - £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the purposes of
issuing letters of gredit and guaranteas in the normal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m: due in 2034, Included are deferred financing costs totalling £10m which have been
capitalised against the bond and are t¢ be amortised over its term.

The Group has a £1.5bn Committed Revolving Credit Facility which matures in June 2027. The Group also has £87m of private
placement nates remaning in issue 10 INstitutional nvestors i the US and Eurape which are due in 2024, At 17 September 2022,
these had an average remaning duration of 1.5 years and an average fixed coupon of 3.82%. The other significant core committed
debt facilities are local committed facilities in ltovo.

Uncommitted bank borrowing facilities are normally reaffirmed by the banks annually, alzhough they can theoretically be withdrawn
atany time.

Refer tc note 9 for details of the Group’s capital commitmeants and to note 27 for a summary of the Group's guarantees. An
assessment of the Group's current liguidity position is given in the Financial Review an pages 60 to 63

i) Capital management

The capital structure of the Group 1s presented In the consolidated balance sheet, For the purpose of the Group’s capital
management, capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to equity sharehalders, totalling £11,448m {2021 -
£9.921m). The consolidated statemeant of changes in equity provides dstails an equity and note 18 provides detaills of lnans and
overdrafts. Short- and medium-tarm funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan and overdraft facilities, both committed
and uncommittad, with a range of counterparties and maturities. Longer-term debt funding 1s sourced from the 2034 Public Bond,
the private placement notes and committed syndicated loan facilities,

The Board's policy 1s ta maintain a strong capital base so as to mantan inveslor, creditor and market confidence and 1o enable
successful future developmant of the business. The financial leverage policy is that, in the ordinary course of business, the Board
prefers to see the Group's ratio of net debt including lease liabilities to Adiusted EBITDA to be well under 1.5 times at each half
year and year end repariing date. The Board monitors return on capital by division and detarmines the overall level of dividends
payable to shareholders.

From time to time the trustee of the Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust purchasss the Company’s shares in the market to
satisfy awards under the Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back into the market, The Group does not
have a defined share buy-back plan.

There ware no changes 1o the Groun’s approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of 1ts
subsidiaries is subject to exiernally-mposed capital requirements.

27. Contingencies
Litigation and other proceedings against the Group are not considered material in the context of these financial statements,

Where Group campanies enter into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other Group companias, the
Group censiders these to be insurance arrangements and has siected to account for them as such in accordance with IFRS 4. In
this respect, the guarantes contract 18 treated as a contingent Lability unti such time as it becomes probable that the relevant
Group company issuing the guarantee will be required to make a payment under the guarantes,

As at 17 September 2022, Group companies have provided guarantees in the ordinary course of husiness amounting 1o £1,754m
(2021 - £1.513m},

in 2021, a Thai court ruled in favour of the Group's Ovalting business in Thailand in a legal action it brought against one of its
suppliers in respect of a contractual dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier had overcharged
Ovalune Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 billlon Thai baht {(£52m; 2021 - £48m). The relevant contractual relationship
between the Group and :ts suppher terminated at the end of 2018, The Group has not yet recorded an asset in respect of this
matter as the defendant is appealing the judgment.
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28. Related parties

The Group has a conirolling shareholder relationstup with i1s parent company, Wittington Investrments Limited, with the trustees of
the Garfield Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who hold shares in the Campany. Further details of the
controlling shareholder relationship are included in note 29. The Group has a related party relationship with its associates and joint
ventures (see note 29} and with its directars. In the course of narmal operations, related party transactions entered mio by the
Group have been contracted on an ann’s length basis.

Materiaf transactions and year end balances with related partss were as follows:

Sub 2022 2021
note £000 £.000

Charges to Wittington Investments Limited in respect of services provided by the Company
and its subsidiary undertakings 930 885
Dividends paid by Associated British Foods ple and received in a beneficial capacity by:

{1} trustees of the Garfield Weaston Foundation and therr close family 1 12,361 1,570

i directors of Wittington Investments Limited who are not trustees of the Foundation

and their close family 2,322 300

{iii) directors of the Company who are not trustees of the Foundation and are not directors

of Wittington Investments Limited 2 128 I
Sales 1o fellow subsidiary undertakings on normal trading terms 3 48 b5b
Sales 10 companies with common key managemeant personnel on normal trading terms 4 16,891 14,980
Amounts due from companies with common key management personnel 4 2,898 1,705
Sales to joint ventures on normal trading terms 54,111 A4 405
Sales to associatas on normal trading terms 73,360 46,407
Purchases from joint ventures on normai trading terms 436,467 361.287
Purchases from associates on narmal trading terms 13,879 16,524
Amounts due from jcint ventures 37,865 35,941
Amounts due from associates 9,151 4,033
Amounts due to joint ventures 30,214 22,960
Amaounts due to associates 594 1,615

1. The Garfield Weston Foundaton the Foundation'] s an Ergash chantakle trost, establsked im 1858 py the late W Gurfisld Westan, The Foundation nas no
dircer Interast in the Cormpany, vl as at ~7 sectember 2022 wes the bens’ cal owne- of 883,073 shares (2021 — 683.073 shares) 10 VWiinngron Invasiments
Lirrited represertng /3.2% {2021 — 70.7%) of that compary ‘s 'ssued share capital and s, thereforn, the Company’s dltimsate controlling party. A1 17
Septembar 2022 tha rosteas of the Foundation comprised nine granachildren of the late W, Garfield Westar o7 wham five a-e childien of ihe late Garry
H. YWeston,

. Letails of the directais ase given an pages “06 ane 16/, Trair nterests, includ.ang family ierests  nthe Company and 1s subsidary ur2eriakings are
giser or page 148, Key managame~t paisonnal are corsidared to be the direciors, and ther remuneration s disclosed within the Remnunarator Report
on pages 126 10 Thd.

3. The feliow subsidary urderta<ngs are Fortnem and Mason ple ana Heal & Sor Limited.

. The campan es ana corrman <ay ranagenent personns| arn ine Georga Weston Limitaa group, in Canada, anc Selfndges & Col Limited,

%)

i

Amounts due from joint ventures include £29m {2021 - £32m) of finance lease receivables {see note 14). The remainder of the
balance is trading balances, All but £4m (2021 - £4m] of the finance lease receivabias are non-current,
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29. Group entities

Control of the Group

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidatad is that headed by Wittington Investments Limited
Wittington”), the accounts of which are available at Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff CF14 3UZ. it s the ultimate holding
company, is Incorporated in Great Britain and is registered in England.

AL 17 September 2022 Wittington, together with its subsidiary, Howard Investments Limited, held 431,615,108 ordinary shares
{2021 — 431,515,108} representing In aggregate 54.5% (2021 — 54.5%) of the total Issued ordinary share capital of Asscciated
British Foods plc.

Wittington, and through theair control of \Wittington, the trustees of the Garfield Weszon Foundation ('the Foundation’), ara
cantrolling shareholders of the Company. Certain ather individuais, including certain members of the Weston family who hold
shares in the Company {and including two of the Company’s directors, George Weston and Emma Adamo) are, under the Listing
Rules, treated as acting in concert with Wittington and the trustees of the Foundation and are therefare also treated as canirolling
shareholders of the Company. Wittington, the trustees of the Foundation and these individuals together comprise the controlling
shareholders of the Company and, at 17 September 2022, have a combined interest in approximately 58.4% (2021 —~ 58.3%) of the
Company's voting rights. Information on the relationship agreement between the Company and 115 controlling shareholders 1s set
out on page 165 of the Directors’ Report.

Subsidiary undertakings

A list of the Group's subsidiaries &s at 17 September 2022 is given balow. The entire share capital of subsidiaries 1s held within the
Group except where ownership percentages are shown. These percentages give the Group's ulimate interest and therefore allow
for situations where subsidianies are owned by partly owned intermediate subsidianes, Where subsidiaries have different ¢lasses
of shares, this is largely for historical reasons and the effective percentage holdings given recresent kboth the Group's voting rights
and equity halaing. Shares in ABF Investments ple are held directly by Associated British Foods pic. All other holdings in
subsidiaries are owned by members of the Associated British Foods ple group. All subsidiarias are consolidated in the Group's
financial staternents.

%5 effective holding ¥ gifect ve holding
Substdiary undertakings it ot 100 ™ Subsidiary underta<ngs £ nat 100 ™

United Kingdoem
Liegron Ce
LYK JQY, United Kinadam

A B, Exploration Limitec
ABF. Holdings Limited

A B F Momineas Linited
ABF. Properties Lirnited
AB Agri Limized

AB Foods Australia Limited
AR Ingred’ents Limited

AR Mauri (UK Limized

AB Maun Ching Lirrited
AB Maur Eurepe Lmuted

AB Sugar Chinag Heldings Limited
AB Sugar Chuna Limited

AB Sugar China North Limised

AB Sugar Limitea

AB Technology Limited

AB World Foods (Holuings) Livated
AB World Foods Limited

ABF (Mo 1) Linwted

ABF (No.2i Lirrited

ABF (No.3) Lirniled

ABF BRL Finance |.1d

ABF Energy Limited

ABF Europe Finance Limited

ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limred

ABF Food Tach brvestments Limitad
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Prooucts Lirited

ABF Grae- Park Limited

ABF Grocery Limited

1o, 10 Grosvanoer Straet, Longon,

ABF HK Ferarce Linuted

ABF Ingredisnts Linitad

ASF Investrments plo

ABF Japan Limited

ABF MXN Finance Lirnted
ABF Oversess Lirmited

ABF PM Linvted

ABF UX Finarge L'nitad

ABF US Haldings Lim'tea
ABF ZMWY Finance Limited
ABN (Overseas) Limited
ABNA Feed Compary L imited
ABNA Limited

Acetumn (LK) Limited {pravicusly Allieg Technical
Centre Limited)

Agrlines Limited

Alliec Bakenes Limited

Aliied Gram {Scotland Limited
Allice Grain {South) Lirmited
Aliiec Gram {Southen) Limited
Aliiec Grain Limited

Alllee Mills (Mo, 1) Limited

Alliee Mills Limited

Allinsan Limited

Associated British Foods Pension Trustees Limited
Atrium 100 Properties Limited
Atrium 100 Stores Holaings Limited
Atrium 100 Stores Limited

B.E. International Foads Limited
Banbury Agriculture Limited
Brittsh Sugar {Overseas) Limitad
British Sugar pic

BSO {Chinad Linmited

Ceresl Industries Limited
Cereferm Lirited

Davjon Food Limited
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities continued

oy prtective holding h

Suosiclary undetakings ifnot 1007

4 etffactive holding

Sunsidiary undartakings i“ not 100%

Dorset Cereals Lirited

Easthowe Securities Linuted

Elsenham Quahty Foods Limied
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & Grain Limitad

Food Investments Lirmited

G, Costa (Hodqigal Limitad

G. Cnsta and Company [imirad
Germain's (UK Lirmitad

H & Limited

Wewvo Sugar Afnica Holdings imited
Jonn K. King & Sons Limited
Kingagate Food Ingredients Limitec
LeafTC Livvited

tauri Products Limited

Mountstisld Park Finance Limted
Mere Proverties Lim ted

MNuthzion Trading {International) im tec
Nutriion Trading Limited

Patak {Spicest bimized

Fetak Faod Lirited

Patak’s Breads Lirmited

Patak's Foods 2008 Limized

Frermies Nutrition Products Limited
Pride Qils Poblic Limuted Company
Primar« (U ¥ Limited

Primarx Austna Lim ted

Primark Moda Linmited

Primark Pe~s on Adrrimistration Services Limitod
Primark Stares Limited

FPrimary Diets L mred

Frimary Nutrman Limited

Pro-Active Nutnition Lirmated

R. Twinng and Company Lim ted
Raflex Nuintion Lirnited

Raoses Nutrition Ltd

Seedeote Systems Linuted

Serpentine Securities Limited

Sizzlers Limited

Sizzdes Limvied

Spectrum Aviation Limited

Speecibake Limited

Sunblest Bekeries Lirmited

The Bakary Schaool Limited

The Billinglon Foad Groun Lim'ted

The Home Growen Sugar Conpany Lamited
The Jordans & Rywita Company imted
The Natural Sweetngss Company Limited
The Readsrap Company Lirmited

The S'lver Spaon Compary Limited
Tip Tap Bakeries L mited

Trida~t Feeds Limized

Twirung Crostield & Ca. Limited
Vivergo Fuels Limited

W, Jordan & Son (Siloy Limited

W Jardan (Cereals) Lirited

Wereham Gravel Company Limited (Tha)
Westm !l Foods Limitted
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Weston Bscuit Company Limired (Thel
Weston Foods Lintex

Weston Resaarch Laboratorics Limited
Waorldwing investmerits Limited

VWanastow Road Industual Fsiaze, Monmouin NF2E
SAA, Unitod Kingaom

Greencoat Limited

C/O Greencoat Linvred Wonastow Road Ingustig!
Tsiare, Manmouth ND2E BIA, Unitaa Kingaan
Shao-Fair Products Limited

Lir 4. Wonastow Road Indusirisl Estate, Monmouth
NPZE BUA, Unitad Kingdony

Greencoat Farm Lirmited

Linir 4 & 5, Monastow foad industnal Estate 'est,
tfonmouth NF25 BJA United Kingdoin

Matural Vetcare Limited

Vorron Hause, -0 Mawe Nortl Avad, Huddarsfield,
Wes: Yorkshue HD1 BLE Unted Kingdom

Proper Nutty Lemiled

1 Collage Place Narth, Belfast, 871 656,

Untted Kingdom

James Neill, Limted

Unit 4. 211 Castiz foad, Randa'stawn, Co. Antnm,
BT41 2FB. Unitod Kingaon:

Jardan Bros, INLLY Linnited

Nutrition Se:rvicas {Internationalh Limites
Vistavat Lim'ted

180 Glenianar Apad. Glasgow, G22 7UFR,

Urntea Kingdom

ABM (Scotland) Limited

Mitter Samual LLP BiVE House

5 ARenfiald Street, Glasgow, GZ 56

Unitad Kingdam

Korway Foods Lirminted

Korway Haldings L'mited

Patak's Chilledd Foods Limited

Patak's Frozen Foods Limited

Argentina

Maviscal Antoro José de Sucre 632 - 2nd Flcor,
Bugngs Arez 128, Arganina

AR Maun Hispanoame-ica S.A,

Surgras S.A lin higuidation)

Av, Aaul AForsm, Mante Chingolo,

Buenes Aires 3145, Argentng

Compania Argentina De Levadwras 5.ALC.

Australia

Bumding A, fevel 2 11 Talavera Soac,
Norir Rvda, NSW 2113, Ausirals

AB Maurn Cverseas Holdings Limited
AB Maun Pakistan Pty Limited

AB Maun ROW Haoldings Pty Limiied
AB Maun South America Pty Lirmited
AB Maun South Waest Asta Pty Limited
AR Maun Technology & Davelooment Pty Limited
AB Maurn Technology Pty Limited

AB Waorld Foods Pty Ltd

Anzeharm Pty Limiied

AusPac Ingredients Pty Ltd

CCD Animal Healtn Py Ltd

Dagan Trading Pty. Ltd

Fooa Investments Py, Liniited

Gaorge Weston Foods (Victonal Pty Lid
George Wesaton Foods Lirited
Inconesian Yeas! Company Pty Limited



o s effective holding

Subsiziary underiasngs 1not 100%

W effective halding

Subsidery underiakings if not 1004

Maudr Fermentation Brazil Pty Limiteo
Maur Fermentation Chile Pty Limited

Mauri Ferrentation China Pty Limited
Mauri Fermeantation India Pty Lincited

Maur fermentation Indonasia Mty Lirmitea
Maun Fermentation Malaysia Piy Lirited
Maun Fermentation Philppings Ply Limiged
Mauri Fermantation Vienanr Pry Limited
Maur Yeast astraha Piy Limited

NEC Enterprses Pry Lo

NB | ove Industres Pty Lid

Sorrol Ingredients Pty Limitad

The Jurdans and Ryvita Company Australia Pry Lid
Yami's Quality Foods Pty Lid

F5-37 Seuth Corvaraie Avenus, Rawville,

VIC 3778, Avsiraia

AB Food & Beveragos Australia Pry. Limited
176 Sawth Gipusland Highway, Dandznong,
VIC 3175, Australa

ABF Wyrnivard Park Limited Partnarshin

Austria

WVokzone 11/2 OG, 1010 Vienna, Ausmris

Prmark Austria Ltd & Co KG

grartenhachsirasse 82-88:8:3 1. Top 5 1180 Vienna,
Ausiia

N.trilabs GrbH

Bangladesh

Lawve! 13 Shanta VWesrarn Tower,

B Uttams M Shawskat Road, 136 Teygaon 14, Dhaka
1208, Bangladosh

Twini~gs Ovaltne Bangladesh Lim ted

Belgium

industrinnark 2, 9820 Mara'heka, Begum

AB Mawr Belgum NV

Chaussee o la hulpe 177/20, 1170 Bruxelles, Balgnim
Prirnark 54

Brazil

Avernida Terd, [-233 Barrancs do Ro Tiets,

v of Padarmaras, State of 830 Paun

CEP 17 280000, Brazil

AB Brasil Industna & Comércio ds Alirmentos Lida
Alameda Madewa 328, 20th Fioor, Roormn 2005,
Alphawviite  Baruen, Sao Faulo 06454-010, Brazl

AB Enzirnas Brasi| Comercial Lida

Avenida Dra. Burh Cardoso, n' 7 221, 119 Flaor, Room
71071 fparte), Congormino EGifei Birmann 21
Pinbares, CEP 05425-902, City of 5da Pau'n, State of
Sao Pawia, Brazi

AB Vista Brasit Camercio Be Almentacao

Animal Ltda

Canada

Blake Cassais & Graydon LLE, 199 Bay Srost,
Surte 4000, Toranta, Ontano MEL 148, Canada
AB Maun (Canada) Lirited

Chile
Miraffores Strest No 222, 28 Floor, Sanbago, Chile
Calsa Chile Inversiones Limitada

China

No.1 Tongcheng Streei, A Cheng District, Harbin,
Hedongpang Province, £hina

AR (Hasbin) Food ingredients Co., Ltd.

Harbin Maur Yeast Co., Ltd. O hgudation!

Nortn Huang He Boad, Rudong

Noew Econanue Deveiopment Zons,

Manraag Oty hangsu Prowvnce, China

AB Agri Arsmal Nutrition (Nantongh Co., Lid
AB Agri Animal Nutritien {Rudong) Co., Ltd.

No 28, South Shunpn Road Yinin Dstel, Tongohuan,
Shaanv Praovines, China

AB Agr Animal Nutrition (Shaa~x'i Co., Lid,
Chuanmsin Boad Tanggu industry Zone,

Sande Town, Tonggu Couniy,

Hangx Provinece, Ching

AB Agh Pumeixin Teck (Jiangxil Co., Ltd.
Boorm 260 Rafflag Crry Changring,

Ko, 1189 Cnangring Hosd, Changning Distoet,
Sranoha:, 200051, China

AB Enzymes Tradng (Shanghal) Co., Ltd

Raam 2803, Rattles Gy Changming,

Na 1186 Changning Rosd, Charanng Dustrict,
Shanghar, 200051, China

ABNA Managenent [Shanghai Co | Ltd.
ABNA Traging (Shanghai} Co., Ltd

fioom 2906 Raffics City Changning,

No. 71188 Crangring Road, Chanoinng Distiws,
Shangha:, 200051, China

Associazad Briuss Foods Hoizings (Chinad Co.. Ltd
Linit O0B, Boom 401, Floor 4, Buddag 1, N 15
Guanghus Road, Chaoyang Disteor, Soyng, China
AB Maun (Bergl Food Sales end

Marketing Company Limites

Buramg 1, 35 Cny Fong Road, Yange. Distct,
Shanghar 200092, Ching

AB Maun Fogds (Shanghal) Conmany Linuted
868 Yongou Road, Puparg Town,

Mirhang District, Sranghar 201112, China

ABNA& (Shanghal) Feed Co., Lid,

13 Jubar Road, ingha: Deveiopmoent Zone,

Tianun, Ching

ABNA {Tiannt Feed Co., Ltd

Snu Shan Moder inaustngi Zone of Shou County,
Huaingn £ity, Anhul Provines, Ching

ABNA Feed tAnhuil Co., Ltd,

145 Xincnang Road, Tengaa Foanomiz Davelopmant
Zora, Arshan, Liaomng 114225, China

ABNA Feed (L 1zoring Co., Ltd.

17 Yianpyang Street, Tu Townsiup, Chayou Gangl
fnnar Maongoha, China

Botian Sugar Industry (Chayou Qiang) Co., Lid,
No. 1 Bonan Road, Ezonamic Devalaprmant Zone.
Changhen Counry, Zhangpakou City,

Hehat Province, Ching

Botian Sugar Industry (Zhangbe) Co., Ltd
Raoom 1710, Na.368, Changiang Hoad, Nangang
Concentrared Distrar, Econormic Developmant Zone,
Harbin, Chma

Botiar: Sugar Industry Ca., 11d,

1 Indduamal North Strest, Zhangfiakou, Zhangbe
County, Habei Province, Ching

Hebel Maur Food Co |, Lid.

80%
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29. Group entities continued

™, effective holding

Subsidiary undertakings if not 100 %

Subsidiary tndertakings

%. effective holding
#not 100%

& Lancun Road, Econonne and Technes! Dovelopment
Zone, Minhang, Shanghar 200245, China

Shanghal AB Food & Beverages Co., Ltd

No.68-1, Shuanglong Road, Fushan Distact,

Yantar City. Shandong Province, China

Yantal Mauri Yeast Co., Ltd. 92%
Colombia

Cra 35# 34A-64, Palmura, Valle Colombs

Fietschmann Foods § A

Czech Republic

Nadrazm 523, 349 01 Stiitre, Ceech Repubhc

Bodit Tachov s.r.o.

Paltachiim, Na Ponei 1078/3a, Prague 1, 11000, Czech

Repubic

Primatk Prodejny s.r.o.

Benmark

Slyerovey 12, Trastrup, 6820 Videbak, Donriark

AB Neo A/S

Muddelfartveg 77, Banng, D466 Asperup, Denmark

Cowcaonnect ApS

Ecuador

Medardo Angel Siiva 13 v Panamd, Manzana 12,

El RBecieo, Eloy Alffara, Duran, Guayas, Ecvador

ABCALSAS.A,

Eswatini

Ubarmbo Sugar Limited, Old Mamn Road,

Big Bend, Eswatini

Bar Circle Ranch Limited 60%
llove Swanland Limited 60%
Movern Ranch Linvted 60%
Ubombo Sugar Lirnited B60%

Finland

Tykkindenne hb (PO Box 26), Rajaimaki,
FI-05200, Fintand

AB Enzymes Oy

Tykkundente 150 (PO Box 571, Rapamals
FLOB201, Finfand

Enzymes Leasing Finlard Oy
Kosketontie 19 B, Espoo, F1-02920, Finland
Almetrnics Group Oy

Alrmetrnics Diagnostics Oy

Almetrics Research Oy

AB Vista Finland Oy

France

40442, avenue Georges Pompdow, G0003,

& Lyon, France

AB Maur France

25 Rue Anatoie Frahce, 82300 Levallors-Perrat, France
Twinings & Co SAS

11 Rue de Mian, 76008, Fans, France

ABF| France SAS

Centre Commercial Regronal Créteil Soled, Niveau 3,
107 Avenue du Géndral de Gaulie, 84000, Créter,,
Frarce

Primark France SAS

545 Chemin du Vallon du marre, 13240,

Septentes les Vallons, France

SP| Pharma SAS

ZAF Via Europa, 3 rue Athénes, 34350 Vendres,
France

Fylexia Groun

Fylexia
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Germany
Feldbergstrasse 78, 64793, Darmstadt, Germiany
AB Enzymes GmbH

Wandsbioker Zollsrrasse 85, 220417,
Hamburg, Germany

ABF Deutschland Holdings GmbH

Ohly GmibH

Onhly Giundbesitz GrmbH

Rheirsche Presshefo- und Spritwerke Gmiohi
Kennedyplatr 2, 45177, Fssen, Gormany
Prvark Mode Lo & Co KG

Prirniark Proparty GmibH

Wesiendsirasse 28 GO325, Frankfurt am Main, Germany
Wander GmbH

hgrie-Katie Alfee 2. D-53113 Bonn, Germany
Westmill Foods Europa GmbH

Greece
28, Dirinou Soutsou Str, Athens, GR 115 21, Greece
PSH Teal Single Member S.A.

Guernsay
Dorey Court, Adriral Park, St Peter Port,
GY'1 2HT, Guarnsey

Talisman Guernsey Limited

Hong Kong

Workshop D, 8th Floor, Reason Group Tower, No 403
Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Ternitones, Hong
Kong

Assoclated British Foods Asia Pacific

Holdings Linited

Hungary
karoha utca 12 3 on, Budapest, 1053, Hungary
PSH Viplet Kit,

India

#218 & #219 Bommasandra - Jigan Link Road, Anexal
Taluk, Bangalore, bGOT05, fndha

AB Maur India Private Linited

Furst Floor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Ft Road, Btn Biock,
Koramangata Bengalury, Karnataka, 560030, India

SPI Specialios Pharma Private Limited

G341, New Budge Budge Trunt Roao, Ol Dakghar,
Koikara, West Bengal, 700141, Incha

Twerings Frivate Limited

Indonesia

YWisma GKBI Lt 39, Sute 3001, No.28 X Jend,
Sudieman, Jakarta, Indonesio

1 AB Food & Beverages Indoresia (in leuidation)

Ireland

47 Mary Street, Dublin 1, lreland
Ahdale Finance Limited

Primark Holdings Unfirmited Company
Primark Pension Trustees Limited

1 Stokes Place, St Stephon's Green,
Dulhe: 2, frelana

Allled Mills Irefand Lirited

Uit 5, Hebron House, Macdonagh Junction, Kikenny,
RO5 191y, freland

Intellyne Technology Limited



7 effective hotding

Subsidiary undertakings it not 100%

W otfzctive nolding

Subsidisry underlakings if ot 100%,

Arthuyr Ryan House, 22-24 Parnell Stroet,

Dubler 1, heland

Prirnark Lirmited

Primark Austrie Limited

Primark Mode Limited

13 Classon House, Dundruny Business Fark, Dundrins,
Dubin 14, D14XBFG heiand

Nutrtional Agvancea Formulas Hredard) Limited

Italy

Viale Montoe Nero, 84, 20136, Avan, ttaly

AB Agr ltaly S

Via Milano 42, 27045, Castegaio, (Pavial, ftaly
AB Mauri Italy S.p.A.

ABF ltaly Holdings Sl

Large Francesco Rwchine 244, 20122, IMilan, fialy
Primark aly Sl

Via Rizratto 48, 41126, Modena (WMOL ftaly
Acetaia Fini Modena Sl

Vig Sandro Pertinn 340, 201314, Caverzo (MO, tary
Acetum 5.p A,

Vig Garthaldi 84, Magenta, 20013, Milar, Italy

ALP Immobshare S, 70%
Via Gran Sasso, 33, Corbetta, 20011, Milan, frany

B Natural Sl 70%
Jersey

First Floor, Durell House, 28 New Streel, 5t Helier,

JEZ 3RA, Jersey

Bonut Investiments Linmted {dissolved an 20

Sentembar 2022}

Malawi

love House, Churchill Road, Limbe Malawg

Dwangwa Sugar Corporation Limited 76%
lllove Sugar {(Malawi) ple 6%
Malaw Sugar L rmited

Malaysia

Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A, Vertical Rusiness Suile,

Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, 59200 Jajan Kennch,

Kuaty Lurmipur, Malaysia

AB Mauri Malaysi Sdn. Bhd. 52%
Malta

171 Ofd Bakery Stroet, Valetta, VLT 1455, Malta

Relax Limited 0%

Mauritius
10th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower,
13 Cyharcity, Ebene, Mauntus

ovo Group Financing Services

lovo Group Holdings Limited

love Group Marketing Services Limitod
Kilombere Holdngs Limited

Sucoma Holdings Limited

Mexico

Paseo de la Reforma No 2620, Fdificw Reforma Plus,
maa 8 803, 804 y 805, Col. Lomas Atlis,

DF 171850, Meco

AB CALSA S A deCV.

Avenda Javier Bareos Swerra 495, miso 7 ofcina 0/-102,
Lol Santa e, Alvaro Obiegan, Cridad de Maxico,
01218, México

ACH Fonds Mexico, §. de R.L. de C.V,

Mcozambique

KM75 ENT. Mogiana, Distrito de Manheea,
FProvinca de Mapuio, Mozambigue

Maragra Agucar, SA,

Netherlands

Mutweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrecht, Netherlands

AB Maun Netherands BV,

AB Maur Netherlands European Holdings BV,
Foods International Holaing BV,

Varn Oldenbarneveliplaats 38, 3012 AH, Rotterdam,
Methiordands

Primark Fashion BV,

Primark Netherlends 8.V,

Primark St BV,

Wieana 505, 3013AL Rotierdam, Netnerlands

AB Vista Europe BV,

J122 45 Aaften, Dinxperiosostrastweg 122,
Netherlands

Gormans Seed Technolegy B W,

Oude Kerkstraat 55 4878 AK, Erten-Leur, Nothorfands
Mauri Technology BV,

Laarderhoogtwen 25 1101 LB Amsierdam,
Netherlands

Westmill Foods Eurone BV,

New Zealand

Budcing 3. Level 2, 666 Great South Road, Eilersie:,
Auckiana 1051, New Zealand

Alled Foods (NZ) Ltd

Anzchermn NZ Limited {dissolved 28 October 2022)
AdsPac Ingredients NZ Limvted

George Weston Foods (NZ) Lirited

5 Forge Boad, Siverdale 0852 New Zealand
Dad’'s Pies Limited

Nigeria

23 Oba Akimjotn Street, GRA, ke, Lagos, Mgena
Twinings Dvaltine Nigetia Limited

Pakistan

218M Ferorepur Road. 2 K Hadyara Dram, Lahore,

Pakiwstan

AB Maun Pakisran (Private) Lirited 60%
Peru

Av. Repubhea de Argenting No 1227 71, La Chalaca,

Calliior, Peru

Calsz Peru S A.C.

Philippines

86 £ Redriguez Jr. Ave., Ugong Norte, QC, 1604, Fasig

Crty, Metro Mana, Phlippines

AB Food & Beverages Philippines, Inc, 95%

1201-1202 Prime Land Bulding, Matke Street,
Macirigal Busmess Park, Avala Alabang,

Muntinlupa, 1 770, Philippimes

AB Maurn Philippines, Inc.

Poland

Przamysiowa 2, 67-100 Nowa 56! Lubuskie, Poland
AR Foorls Polska Spodlka z ograniczona
odpowiedzialnoscia (AB Foods Polska Sp. 7.0.0.)
Towarowa 28,00-839 Warsaw, Poland

Prirmark Sklepy spolka ¢ ograniceona
odpowiedzialnoscia {Primark Skicpy Sp. 7.0.01
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29. Group entities continued

"t effective nolding

Y affective holding

Subsidiary underiakings if net 100% Subsidiary undertakings F not 100%
ul Rabowicka 28/31, 62-020, Swardodz - Jasin, Poland Calle Comumdad de Murcia, Parcela LIE-1-03,
R. Twaning and Company Spotka 2 ograniczona Plataforma Logistica de Fraga, 22520, Hussca, Spain
odpowiedzialnoscia (R, Twiring and Company Alternative Swine Nutrizon, S.L.
Sp. 2004 Calle Escales Pies 49, Planta Bar, 08017 Barceiona,
ul Glawina 34, Bruszezewo, 64-030, Smigiel Poland Spain
AB Nea Poiska spolka 7 organiczona DR Healthcare Espana, S UL
adpowicdzisinosciz (AB Neo Polskas Sp.z.o.y Avicnoa Virger de Monptserrat, 44 Castoliol, 08713,
(previously AB Agri Polska Sp. z.0.0.) Rarcelona, Spam
Portugal Germains Seed Techrology, S.A,
g
Avernida Satvador Allende, n ©89, Ocwas, Julido da Plaza Fabig Ruz Ficasso 5N Toire Pinasso
Barra, Paco de Arcos e Caxias, 2770157, Planta 37, Madnd, Spain
Paco de Arcas, Portugal llfove Sugar Fspana, S.L.
AB Mauri Portugal, S.A. 98%  Gran Via, 32 50 26013, Madnd, Spain
Rua Castihe 60, 1260-071, Lishon, Portugal Primark Tiendas, S.1.U.
tojas Primark Portugal - Exploracas, Gestao e 8, 2 Calle Via Servicio 1, 2 CP, 19390 Toria,
Adrministracao de Espacos Cornerciais S.A. Guadalaiara, Soam
Romania Pamark { ogistica, 5.1, Sociedad Unipersonat
Distnet 1168 Calea Floreasca, One Tower, 121b Floor, Sti Lanka
Bucharest, Romana . ) )
Prmark Magaziee S.R.L. ipreviously P.S R Indigol 124 Templers Road, Mount Laverng, S Laika
(i UL ADT 5 . - . .
g B 2 naigo AB Mauri Lanka (Prvate) Limited
Rwanda
Sweden
Myarigenge Distrcr, Nvarugenge Sector,
Kugah City, Rwvanda letzius vig 8, 171 68, Solna, Sweaden
llovo Sugar (Kigal) Limited Larodan AB
Singapore Switzerland
B0 Robinson Road, #02-00, DGESYE Smgapor Fabrikstrasse 10, CH-3176, Neuenagg, Swizedand
AB Maurl lavostmcnts (Asia) Pte Ltd Wander AG
112 Robinson Road #05 01, 008902 Singapore Taiwan
AR Vista Asiz Pre. Limiled bF, No.217, Sec 3 Nanking £ Rd, Taiper City, 104,
— : Tatwan (R.O.C.}
Slovakia AR Food and Bevarages Taiwar, Inc
Staromestska 3 811 03 Brausfava  Stare Mesio, OO_ and LeVelages  awarn, nc
Slavaig Tanzania
Primark Slovakia s.r.0. Msohva Mt Qffice, Kdatau, Klombero Distrct, Tanzanu
Slovenia liiove Distillers (Tanzan'al Limited
Blanwve.sova vesta 20, Liubiana, 1000, Slovenis lllovo Tanzania Lim:ted
Primark Trgoving, trgovske podjete, d.o.o. Kilembero Sugar Cormpany Limited 75%
South Africa Thailand
1 Nokve Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhiangs Rocks i 1th Floor, 2535 Sukhumwit Road, Kwaeng Bangohal,
Kwvazulu Natal, 4320, South Afnca ’ Khet Prakhanong, Bangkok, 10260, Thaidand
CGS Investments (Pty) Limited /B Food & Beverages (Thailands Lid.
East Alrican Supply {Pty} Limited ABF Holdings {Thatland) Ltd.
Giendale Sugar [Pty) Ltd ! Empire Tower, 24th Floor, Unit 2412-2413,
) ’ . Snuth Satharn Road, Yannawa, Sathorn, Bangkok,
llove Distnbutors {(Ply) Limted 10120 Thayand
Heve Sugar (Soutn Afnca) Pfop{lctarv Limited AR World Foods Asta Lo
Nlove Sugar Afnca Propnetary Linted 228/110 Moo 1, Teparak Road, T Bangsaothong,
Hiprop (Pty) Limited A Bangsaothong, Samutprakarn, 10840, Thadand
lLacsa (Pry Limitad F0% Jasol Asia Pacific Limited
Noodsherg Sugar Company (Pty) Ltd Turkey
Reynoids Brothers (Pty) Lid Aksakal Mahalles, Kavakpinar, Kume Evien
$.A. Sugar Distributors (Prys Limited No. 5, Bandirme- Balikisic, 10245, Turkey
Spain Maun Maya Sanayl A.S.
Calle Cardenal Marcelo Spincla, 42, 28018, United Arab Emirates
Meaclriel, Spain Office 6047 Jafza | OB 15, Jebel Al Freerone, Db,
AB Azucarera tbena, S.L. Sociedad Unipersonal PO BOX 17620, United Arab Bmiates
AB Vista Iberia. SL AB Mauri Middie East FZE
Calle Levadura, 5 14770, Villawrubia, Cordeba
AB Maur Food, S.A
AB Maurn Spain, 5L U
ABF lbena Holding S.L.
C/Escuitor Coomonte it 2, Entroplanta, Benavento,
Jamaora, Span
Agroteo S.A. 53%
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% effccnve holding

Subsidiary underiakings A net 100%

% effective holding

Subsidary undertakings if not 100%

United States

CT Corporetion System. 818 West Seventh Streos,
Swite 830, Los Angeles LA 30017, Uninaed States
AB Maun Food Inc.

The Corporabon Trust Company, Corporation Trust
Canter, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmingion DE 19801,
Unied States

AR FEnzymes, Inc.

AR Vista, Inc.

AB World Foods US, Ing.

ABF North Amerca Corp.

ABF Morth America Holdings., Inc.
Abitec Corporation

ACH Food Companies, Inc

ACH Juprter LLLC

B.V. ABF Delaware, Inc. (in igudation)
BakelGood, LLC

Germains Seed Techrology, Inc.

PGP International, Inc.

Prirmark US Corp.

Skl Pharma, Inc,

SPl Polyols, LLC

Twinings Norts America, Inc.

101 Arch Street, Flour 3. Bostan MA 02110,
Umted States

Prrrark GOM LLC

188 River Road, Untt 8, Chfron, NJ 07014,
United States

Balsarmw Express LLC

158 River Road, Unit A, Chtan, NJ 07014,
Uniteg States

Modena Fine Foods, Inc.

Registered Agent Solutions, 1220 8 5t Ste 150,
Sacramento CA 85371

PennyPacker, LLC

Ragistered Agent Salutions inc., 8 E Lovckerman
Street Sute 211, Dover, Kent DE 19907, United States
Prosecco Source, LLC

251 Lutle Falls Drnve, Wilningron, DE 19808, United
Siates

Fytexia Cop.

Uruguay

Che Carlos Artorio Lopez 75847,

Montewideo, Uruguay

Levadura Uruguaya S.A.

Venezuela

Oficinas Once 3 INT 113}y Once < (N® 11y, Torre
Mayupan, Centro Cormergial Sar Luns, Av . Poncsal
Lirbanizacion San Lus, cruce con Calle Comercin,
Caracas, Bohvanan Repubhc of Venezuela

Alimentos Fleischimann, CA.,

Compania de Almentos Latinoamerncang

de Venczuela {CALSAI S A

Vietnam

Uit 20100 Nguyen Tir Minh Knai Strest,

Ward 8 Drstrict 3, Ho Chor Minn Crty, Vigtnam
AB Agn Vietnam Company Limited

La MNga Cammune, Dink Quan Distrct, Dong Nai
Province, Vietnam

AB Maur: Vietnam Limited 66%
Zambia

Nakambata Estates, Fiot No. 118« Lubombo Road,

(21 Great North Road, Zambea

NMovo Sugar (Zambia) Limited

Nanga Farms PLC 75%
Tukunka Agricultural Limited 75%
Zamisa Sugar ple 75%
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29. Group entities continued

Joint ventures

Alist of the Group's joint ventures as at 17 September 2022 is given below. Al joint ventures are included m the Group’s tinancial

statements using the cauity methad of accounting.

Joint venluies e holdng Jomt ventures T holding
United Kingdom Room 608, 6tn Floor, 1378, Bocheng Road, Pudorg
Waston Contro, 10 Grosvenor Streel, Lonrion, New Dustnet, Shangha, Ching )
WK 40y, United Kinadorr AB Maudri Yihai Kerry Fooo Markering (Shanghat)
) . . o Co, Ltd H0%
Frontier Agriculture Limited 50% ) R
| o tAarculurel Limted 509 Ta Ha Comprenensive industna Park, Fuye County
Boothmans {Agreuiturel Limite v Lronemic Doevelopment Arca, Cgihar, Hedongrang
Forward Agranomy Limited 50% Praovinca, China
G F P {Agniculture) Limited 50% AR Mauri Yihai Kerry (Fu Yuj Yeast Technology Cn
G Grain Lisnied 50%, Itd 50%
GH Crain INo 2} Limniad 509%, 9 Tonygang Noad, Shage L’f!hjgd, Nanpu Tavwr,
Gran Harvesters Limited 509, Cheangang Area, Quanztiou, Fuhan Province, China
° AR Maur: Yihai Kerry (Quanzhou) Yeast Technology
Intracrop Limnited 50% Co. Ltd. 509,
Normre Limvited 50% Intersection of Javfong Avenue and Zhoushan Road,
North Wold Agronomy Limited 50% (Gang Distrct, Zhoukow, Hepan Province, China
Phoerix Agronomy Limited 509% .ﬁ‘:B Maur Yihal Kerry (Zhoukou) Yeast Technology .
SOYL Limited 50% i‘?w}l-“j-d o Mochona T 5 50%
. ; . o Xinsha Industnal Zone, Machong Town, Dongguan,
BTh,e‘%gr?' ‘O';:y Py‘d{;nush.%brkmt(zd " 50% Guangdong Frovrce, Ching
erth , Test Hood, Eastern Doors, Southamoton, - .
Harmpahire, 5014 3GG, Urited Kimgedon e AB Maun Yihat Kerry [Dongguan) Feod Co ., Ltd 50%
Southarmpton Grain Tarmunal Limited 5o  Finfand ; )
Kingseat, Newrnacher, Aberdeensnire. Tykk.‘maPnhel Thb (PO Box 57), Raiamat.,
AB21 OUE, Scotland, United Kingdom: FIN-GS20T. Firkand .
. )
Eurcagker Limited 50% Roal Oy 50%
Lotrian Crop Specialists Limited 509,  France
Riverside, Wissington Road, Nayiand, Colchester 88, Chermun du Mowin, 695701, Carron, Darcily, [iance
Cssex, COG4LT, United Kingdom Synchronis 50%
Angha Gran Holdings Limited 50% Germany
Angha Grain Services Limted 50% Bredo 4, 5368, Werne, Germany
Unit & Burnaide Business Park, Burnsde Boad, Marko: UNIFERM GrabH & Co. KG 50%
Orayvton, TFO 3UX, United Kingdarr INA Nahrmittel GrmbH 50%
e 0 -
B C W (Agriculture) Linmited . 50%  UNIFERM Verwaltungs GmoH 50%
Witharn St Hughs, Lincoln, [ NG 3TN, United Kingdom Brode 8, 59368, Werne, Germany
1 Lo
Nomix Enviro Lirmitad 0% UNILOG GmbH 50%,
Lagle Lahs tncubator, 28 Chestarton Road Cambndge,
i = Japan
Frgland, CB4 3A7 ) . e
Ve (i 50% 36F Ataga Green Hiis More lower, 2-5-1 Atago, hinato-
agro Ll o ku, Tokyo 105-6236, Japan
Australia I'winings Japan Co Lid 50%
Building A, Leve! 2, 1] Talavera Road, North Ryde Poland
NEW 2113, Austraha s 5 ok O €O 61-215
Lo L. fed, nNro, 10K L NNessc, RS RsR
Formum & Masors Pty Limited 33% Po7n:n, F’ifand =
Chile Uniferm Poiska Sp 7.0.0 50%
Avs Bafma(:{-:d;f 3500, Valdnda, Chile South Africa
{evaduras Collico S A 50% 1 Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umbianga Rocks,
China Kweazuhy Naral 4320 South Afnca
1828 Tiejueshan Road, Husngdao Distct, Ginadao, Giendale Distilling Company 50%
Shandong Frovince, China Spain
Qingdao Xmglhua Cereal Qnt and Foodstulf Co., Lta 25% C/Rzsumundo Fornéndez, Viltaverde 28, Madrd, Spain
éfﬂ:ﬁ);i‘ Ren Min Road, Reniment 06, Cocodala, Xirana, Comnpatia de Melazas, 5.A. 50%
AB Maun Yiha Kerry {Cocodalat Food Co., Ltd. Unitgd States . .
tpreviously Xinjang Maurt Food., Lid) 509, The Lorporation Trust (ﬂmpam’:} Coiporanon Trust
Foom BO7. 6t Finor, 1375, Booneng Rood. Fudong fc,emw' ﬂi_209 Orange Street, Vimington DE 19601,
New District, Skanghan, China Urnted States .
AB Maurt Yihal Kerry Investrnent Company Linuted 509, Stratas Foods LLC 509
Sivatas Recewvables | LLC 50%
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Associates

Alist of the Group's associates as at 17 Septernber 2022 is given below, All associates are included in the Group's financial

statements using the equity method of accounting.

Associates

I holding

Associates k2

rolding

United Kingdom
Facioll House, Duncan Close, Moulton Park industial
Estate, Narthamortorn, NN3 6WL, United Kingdom
Bakers Basco Limited
FPaternoster Howse, B85 5t Faul's Churchyard,
London, ECAM BAB, United Kingdom

C. Czarnibow Limited

Czarnikow Group Limited

C. Czarmkow Sugar Futures Lumited

Lo Lzarmnikow Sugar Limited
Sugarwaorld Limited
Mo thants Ape, Rushton Road Keftenng, NN 1FRL
England, Unnited Kingdom
Mavara Qat Mailling Limited

20%

43%
43%
43%
A43%
43%

19%

Australia

283 Flagstaff Road, Brinkiey A 5253, Austvaha
Big Pork River (Austratiay Pty Ltd

Big River Pork Pry Ltd

Murray Bridge Bacon Pry Lid

32 Daws Road, Wetherd! Park, Sydney NSW 27164,
Austraha

New Fooa Cosnngs Pry Lid

20%
20%
20%

50%

Bahrain

Suite No. 1989 Diplomatic Commercal Otfice, Tower 8,
Bulang No 1565, Roaq 1722, Dolormatic AveasManama
217, Bahram

Crarnikawe Supply Chain Sales fo- Foox & Beverage
Ingredients Bahran S P (.

43 (j/(}

Brazil

Avenida Presidente Juscehno Kubitschoek, n.% 2,041,
177 andac- Vil Ohmma. CEF 04.543-017. Sao Paulo,
Brasil

Crarmkow Brasit bida

Rua Fidencio Ramas, 208, oibd, Torre A, Vila Ofunipia,
Sdo Paulo, SP, Cep 04551-010, Bras!

Cz Energy Comercializado Ha De Etanol S.A

43%

21%

China

Room 17A01, 232 Lnong Shan 6th Ruad, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong FProvince, 510180, China

L. Czarmikow Sugar (Guangzhou! Company Ltd

43 OC}

india

House No 1-8-373/A, Chiran Fort Lane, Begumpet,
Hyderabad 500003, india

C. Czarnikow Sugar (india) Prvate Limited

43 %

Indonesia
Komple Purr Mutiara Blok A21-22, JL. Ghya Utama,
Sunter Agung, Jakarta, 14350, Indangsio

FT indo Farmex
P.T. Jaya Fermex
PT Sama Indah

49%
49%
49%

Israel

26, Harokmim st, Haolon Azirel Center Buiding B,
Israel

Sucanm {CIST}itd

A43%

ftaly
Via Borgogna, 2 20122, Milan, ltaly
Czarnikow Ralia Srl

43 %

Kenya

[ & A Bank House, Seoand Ngong Avenos,
P.O Boa 10817, Nawob 00100, Kenya
Czarnikow East Africa Limited

A3%

Mauritius

No b President Jonn Kennedy Qiroe,
Port Lours, Maunius

Sukpak Limited

30%

Mexico

Jaine Batmes #8 Loc 3-4, Log Movales Polance,
Medvico City, 11510, Meoxico

C. Czarnikow Sugar (Mexice), S.A. de C V.
Czarnikow Servicios de Personales (Mexico), 5.4,
de C.V.

43 D/U

New Zealand
oo KPMG, 18 Viadguct Hartrour Avenus, Manbime
Square, Auckland, New Zealand

New Food Coatings (New Zealand) Limined

50%

Philippines

Unit A, 103 Excelience Avenue, Carmelray

Industrial Park 1, Canlubang, Catarmba,

Laguna, Philippnes

Mevr Food Coatings {Philippanes) Ire.

5F Don Jacinto Burlding, Dels Rosa cor Salceda
Streats, Legaspe Vilage, 1279 Makat City, Philippinas

CZ Phiippines, Inc

50%

43%

Singapore

3 Phiilip Streat. #14 01 Roval Group Buiding,
Singapor: 048663

C. Cearni<ow Sugar Pre. Lirted

43%

South Africa

I Gledhow Ml Road, Gledhow, Kwadukuza, 4450,
South Africa

Giedhow Sugar Company Pty Limited

30Y%

Tanzania
7th Floor Amam Place. Ofwo Street, PO Box 38668,
Dar-es-Sataam, Tanzania

Czarmkow Tanzama Lirrted
Msolwa Mitt Office, Kidataw, Tanzama
Kilombero Sugar Distrbutors Limited

43 %!

20%

Thailand

209 Moo 75, Teparat Road. Tambofl Bangsacthong,
King Arnphur Bangsaothong, Samutpracarn, Thadand
MNewly Weds Foods (Thailang) Ltd

1203, 12th Froor, Meiropols Bulding

726 Sukhumwir Road, Narth Klongton, Wattana,
Bangkak, 10110, Thalland

Czarntkow (Thailand} Lirmited

50%

43%

United States
333 SE 2nd Averue, Suite 2860, Miami,
Fi 33131 {ISA

(. Czamixow Sugar Inc.

A3%

Vietnam

Sth Floor, IMC Tower, 62 Tan (luarg Khai, Tan Dink
Weied, District 1, fio Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Crarmkow (Vietnami Limiten
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29. Group entitics continued

In accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act’), and subject to compliance with the requirements of
that saction including the provision of a statutory guarantee from Associated British Foods ple, the following subsidiaries are
exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individua! accounts in respect of the financial year endad

17 September 2022:

Company name

Company number

Company nrame

Company number

A.B. Explorat’on Limited

AB Maur China Linuted

AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
AR Sugar China Linnied

ARF {No.1} Limited

ARF [No.?} Limited

ABF (No.3) Limited

ABF BRL Finance Ltd

ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance bimited

ABF Food Tech Investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF HK Finance Limisted

ABF Japan Limited

ABF PM Lirmited

00487323
12108070
09468366
084697163
04683120
033869798
00155305
110019402
01004268
04659735
00172141
05380813
07761084
00492278
00486887

AB.F. Properties timired

ABF UK Finance Limited

ARBF US Holdings Lim'ted

ABF ZMW Finance Lirted

ABN (Overseas) Limited

Acetum (UK} Limsted

Atriurr: 100 Properties Limited
Atrum 100 Stores Holdings birmsted
Atrgm 100 Stores Limited

8nitish Sugar {Overseas) Limited
B85S0 (Chinal Limnted

G. Costa {Holdings) L'mited
hountsfield Park Finance Limsted
Twening Croshield & Co Limited
Woridwing Investments Limited

00683361
07267422
05655240
13485724
00145374
00446610
04502487
04660969
05007953
(2400085
03739608
03679738
07882348
00144500
02778854
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30. Alternative performance measures

In reporting financial information, the Board uses various APMs which it believes provide useful additional information for
understanding the financial performance and financial health of the Group. These APMs should be considered in addition to IFRS
measures and are not intended 1o be a substitute for them. Since [FRS does not defing APMSs, they may not be directly comparable
to sunilar measures used by other companies.

The Board also uses APMSs to improve the comparability of information between reporting periods and geographical units (such as
like-for-tike sales) by adjusting for non-recurring or uncontroliabie factors which affect {FRS measures, to aid users in understanding

the Group's performance.

Consequently, the Board and management use APMSs for performance analysss, plenning. reporting and incentive-seting.

Closest

equivalent [FRS

APM MedsUiy Definvonipurcose Heconuiistondicaloulatior
Like-for-like No direct The like-for-like sales metric enables measurement of the Consistent with the
sales equivalent performance of our retail stores on a comparable vear-on-year basis.  definition given

This measure represents the change in sales at constant currency n

our retal stores adjusted for new stores, closures and relocations.
Refits, extensions and downsizes are also adjusted for if a store's
retail square footage changes by 10% or more. For each change

described above, a store's sales are excluded from like-for-ike sales

for one year.

No adjustrnents are made for disruption dunng refits, extensions or
downsizes if a store's retall square footage changes by less than
10%, for cannibalisation by new stores, or for the timing of national
or bank holidays.

it is measured against comparable trading days in each year.

Three year No direct The like-for-like sales metric expressed over three years enables Cansistent with the
like-for-like equivaient measurement of the performance of our retail stores compared to defiution given
sales our experience in 2019, the last full financial year befere any of the

economic effects of COVID-19.

It is calculated as described above for like-for-like sales, but with

2019 data as the comparator.
Adjusted No direct Adiusted operating fprofit) margin is adjusted operating profit as a See note A
operating equivalent parcentage of revenus,
{proftty margin
Adjusted Cperating Adjusted operating profit is stated before amortisation of non- A reconciliation of this
operating profit operating intangibles, transaction costs, amortisation of fair value measure is provided on
profit adiustments made to acquired mventory, profits less losses on the face of the

chsposal of non-current assets and exceptional tems.

Items defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and
associates are also treated as adjusting iterns for the purposes of
adjusted operating profit.

consolidated income
statement and by
operating segment in
note 1 of the financial
statements
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30. Alternative performance measures continued

Closest
equivalent I=RS
APM ITeasure Cefinor/purpose Recuncibation/calculanon
Adjusted See Adjusted  Adiusted operating profit before repayment of job retention scheme  See note A
operating operating monies is adjusted operating profit adjusted for repayment of job
profit before profit retention scheme moniegs.
repayment of  {nhon-IFRS)
job retention measure
scheme
monies
Adusted Profit before Adjusted profit before tax 1s stated before amortisation of non- A reconciliation of this

profit before
tax

tax

operating inangibles, transaction costs, amortisation of fair value
adjustments made to acquired inventory, profits less losses on
disposal of non-current assets, exceptional items and profits less
iosses on sale and closure of businesses.

lterms defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and
associates are also treated as adjusting items for the purposes of
adjusted protfit before tax.

measure s provided on
the: face of the
consolidated mcome
statement and by
operating segment in
note 1 of the financial
siaternents

Adjusted
earnings and
adjusted
gamings per
share

Earnings and
earmngs per
share

Adjusted earnings and adjusted earnings per share are stated before
amortisation of non-operating Intangibles, transaction costs,
amortisation of farr value adjustments made to acquired inventory,
profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets, exceptional
items and profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses,
together with the related tax eflect.

ltems defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and
assoclates are also treated as adjusting items for the purposes of
adjusted earnings and adjusted earmings per share.

Reconciliations of these
measures are provided in
note 7 of the financial
statements

Exceptional No direct Exceptional items are items of mcome and expenditure which are Exceptional items are
items equivalent materizl and unusual in nature and are considered of such included on the face of
significance that they reguire separate disclosure on the face of the  the consolidated mcome
income statement. statement vwith further
detail provided in note 2
of the financial
statements
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Closest
equivalent IFRS

AR HAEEENGE Definition/purpose Reconcihation/caloulation
Constant Revenue and  Constant currency measures are derived by translating the refevant See note B
currency see adjusted prior year figures at current year average exchange rates, except for

cperating
profit
{non-IFRS)

measure

countries where CPl has escalated to extreme levels, in which case
actual exchange rates are used, There are currently three countries
where the Group has operations in this position — Argentina, Venezuela
and Turkey.

Effective tax

Income tax

The effective tax rate 1s the tax charge for the year expressed as a

Whilst the effective tax

rate expense percentage of profit before tax. rale is not disciosed, a
reconciliation of the tax
charge on profit before
tax at the UK corporation
tax rate fo the actual tax
charge is provided in
note b of the financial
statements

Adjusted No direct The adiusted effective tax rate 1s the tax charge for the year The tax impact of

aftective tax equivalent excluding tax on adjusting items expressed as a percentage of raconciling tems

rate adjusted profit before tax. between profit before tax
and adjusted profit before
tax is shown in note 7 of
the financial staterments

Dividend No direct Dividend cover is the ratio of adjusted earnings per share 1o See note C

cover eguivalent dividends per share relating to the year,

Capital No direct Capital expenditure is a measure of the investment each ygar in See note D

expenditure equivalent non-current assets in existing businesses. It comprises cash outflows

from the purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles.

Gross No direct Gross mvestment 18 a measure of the investrnent each year in Ses note E

investment eguivalent non-current assets in existing businesses and acqguisiions of new
businesses. It includes capital expenditure as well as cash outflows
from the purchase of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
additional shares in subsidiary undertakings purchased from
non-controlling interests and other investments, as well as net debt
assumed in acquisttions,

Net cash/debt Neo direct This measure comprises cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts, A reconciliation of this

before lease equivalent current asset investrments and loans. measure 18 shown in

liabilities

note 25 of the financial
statements

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022

223



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

30. Ahlernative performance measures continued

APM

Closcst
equivalent IFRS
maeasure

Dehniton/mrpose

Recurciiatton/calcutation

Net cash/debt  No direct This measure comprises cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts, A reconciliation of thig
including equivalent current asset investments, loans and lease liabilities. measure 1s shown in
lease note 26 of the financial
liabilities statements
Adjusted See Adjusted  Adjusted EBITDA s stated before depreciation, amortisation and See note F
EBITDA operating impairments charged 1o adjusted operating profit.
profit
(non-IFRS)
meastire
Financial NG direct Financial leverage 1s the ratio of net cash/debt including lease See note F
leverage ratio  equivalent liabilities to adjusted EBITDA.
Total hquidity  No direct Total liguidity comprises net cash/debt before lease liabilities plus See note G
equivalent Qualifying debts and credit facilities.
Qualifying debt and credit facilities ara those which are medium-to-
long-term, are committed and either contain no performance
covenants, or where they do, they are assessed as highly unlikely to
be breached in even a severe downside scenaro.
{Average) No direct Capital employed 1s derived from the management balance sheet Consistent with the
capital equivalent angd does not reconcile directly to the statutory balance sheet. All definition given
employed elements of capital employed are calculated in accordance with
Adopted IFRS.
Average capital employed for each segment and for the Group is
calculated by averaging the capital employed for each period of the
Inancial year based on the reporting calendar of each business.
Return on No direct The return on {average) capital employed measure divides adjusted  Consistent with the
(average} equivalent oberating profit by average capital employed. definition given
capital
employed
(Average) Mo direct Working capital s derived from the management balance sheet and  Consistent with the
working equivalent does not reconcile directly to the statutory balance sheet. All definition given
caprtal elements of working capital are calculated in accordance with
Adopted IFRS.
Avearage working capital for each segment and for the Group is
calculated by averaging the working capital for each period of the
financial year based on the reporting calendar of each business,
{Average) No direct This measure expresses {average) working capital as a percentage of Consistent with the
working capital equivalent revenus, definition given

as a
percentage of
revenus
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Note A

Central and
tisposod
Grocery Sugar  Agneultures  Ingred-ents Retall  businesses Total
£m frn fm £ £m frn £
2022
External revenue from continuing businesses 3,735 2,016 1,722 1,827 7,697 - 16,997
Adjusted operating profit 399 162 47 159 756 (88} 1,435
Adjusted operating margin % 10.7% 8.0% 2.7% 8.7% 9.8% 8.4%
2021
External revenue from conminuing businesses 3,593 1,650 1,637 1,508 5,683 3 13,884
Adiusted operating profil 413 152 44 151 327 (70} 1,011
Repayment of |ob retention scheme monies - - - - 94 - 94
Adjusted opecrating profit before repayment of job
retention scheme monies 413 162 44 15 415 (70) 1,105
Adjusted operating margin % 11.5% 9.2% 2.9% 10.0% 5.7% 7.3%
Note B
Bisposod
Grogery Sugar  Agrecuitre  Ingredenis Retall  businesses lotal
L £m £ £m £m £ £m
2022
External revenue fram continuing businesses
at actual rates 3,736 2,016 1.722 1,827 7,697 - 16,997
2021
External revenus trom continuing businesses
at actual rates 3.593 1,650 1,637 1,508 5,593 3 13,6884
Impact of foreign exchange 36 54 18 27 (88} - 47
External revenue from continuing businesses
at constant currency 3,625 1,704 1,655 1,635 5,605 3 13,931
% change at constant currency +3% +18% +11% +19% +d0% +22%
- Central and
disposed
Grocery Sugar  Agnculiure  Ingredients Retall  busnesses Totat
£rm fom £ fm £m fm £
2022
Adjusted operating profit at actual rates 3599 162 47 159 756 (88) 1,435
2021
Adjusted operating profit at actual rates 413 152 44 157 321 (70) 1,011
Impact of toreign exchange 5 18 - 3 1 - 27
Adjusted operaling profit at constant currency 418 170 44 154 322 (70} 1,038
% change at constant currency 5% 5% +7% +3%  +135% +38%
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30. Alternative performance measures continued
Note C

2022 2021
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 1311 80.1
Dividends relating 10 the year (pence) - excluding special dividend proposed 43.7 26.7
Dividend cover 3.00 3.00
Note D
2022 2021
{rom the cash flow statement £tm £m
Purchase of property. plant and eguipment 680 551
Purchase of intangibles 89 76
769 627
Note E
2022 2021
From the cash flow statement £m £rn
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 680 551
Purchase of intangibles 89 76
Purchase of subsidianes, joint ventures and associates 154 57
Purchase of shares in subsdiary undertaking from non-controliing interests - 23
Purchase of other investments 7 14
930 721
Note F
2022 2021 2020
£m falanl £
Adjusted operating profit 1,435 1,011 1,024
Charged to adjusted operating profit:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 521 535 538
Amortisation of operating intangibles 24 26 33
Depreciation of nght-ci-use assets and non-cash lease adjustments 281 288 289
Impairment of property, plant and equiprnent and right-of-use assets - - 15
Adjusted EBITDA 2.261 1,860 1,899
Net debt including lease labililies (1,764) (1,380) {2.081)
Financial leverage ratin 0.8 0.7 11
Note G
2022 2621 2020
£m £ £m
Net cash befcre lease liabilitiss 1,488 1,901 1,558
Qualifying debt 400 72 236
Qualifying credit facilities 1,500 1,088 1,088
Total ligudity 3,388 3,061 2,882
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Company balance sheet
at 17 September 2022

2022 2021
Nota £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1 - 15
Right-of-use assets 2 9 12
Investments in subsidiaries 3 1,287 720
1,296 747
Current assets o
Debtors:
+ due within one year 4 3,163 2,576
+ due after one year 4 93 148
Employee benefits assets — due after one year 5 1,366 633
Derivative assets 30 44
Cash and cash equivalents 1,408 1,853
6,065 5,052
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts — unsecured (2) (229)
Lease liabilities 2 {3} {3)
Other creditors 7 {4,013} {3,322}
Derivative liahilities {3} -
{4,021) {3,654}
Net current assets 2,044 1,498
Total assets less current liahilities 3,340 2,245
Creditors: amounts falling due after ona year
Bank loans -~ unsecured (481) (74)
Lease liabilities 2 {7) i
Amounts owed to subsidiarias 7 {196} (243
Employee benefits liabilities 5 (22) (37
Deferred tax liabilities 5] (324) {137)
(1,030} {502)
Net assets 2,310 1,743
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 8 45 45
Capital redemption reserve 8 2 2
Hedging reserve 8 - 4
Profit and loss reserve 8 2,263 1,692
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,310 1,743

The Company's profit for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022 was £426m (53 weeks ended 18 September 2021 - loss of £44m).
The financial statements on pages 233 10 239 were approved by the Board of directors on 8 November 2022 and were signeg on

its behalf by:
Michael MeLintock Jobh Basen
Chairman i e Director
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Captal Prof.t
Share  redemoiion Hedging and lnss
Capital reserve reserve reserve lotat
i fm £m fm Em

Balance as at 12 Seplember 2020 45 2 4 1,366 1,417
Total comprehensive income
l.oss for the period recognised in the income statement - - - ta4) (44}
Remecasurement of defined benefit schemes - - - L4 544
Deferred tax assocated with defined benefit schemes - - - {142} {1421
ltemns that will not be reclassilied 1o profit or loss - - - 402 402
Other comprehensive incorme - — 402 402
Total comprehensive income — — - 3E8 358
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - {43} {49}
Net movement in own shares held - - - 17 17
Total transactions with owners - - - (32) (32)
Balance as at 18 September 2021 45 2 4 1,692 1,743
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - 426 426
Remeasurement of defincd benefit schemes - - - 742 742
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes - - - {186} (186)
ltems that will not be reclassitied to profit or loss - - - 556 556
Movements in cash flow hedging position - - {5} - 5
Deferred tax associated with movements in cash flow hedging position - - 1 - 1
ltems that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss - - (4} - (4)
Other comprehensive income - - (4} 556 552
Total comprehensive income - - (4 982 978
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - (380} {380}
Net movement in own shares held - - - (31} (37)
Total fransactions with cwners - - - (411) (411}
Balance as at 17 September 2022 45 2 - 2,263 2,310

234  Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022



Accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presentad in sterling, rounded to
the nearest miltion. They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, except that derivative financial instruments are stated at
their fair value, and in accordance with FRS 1071 and the
Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of
the disclosure exemptions available in relation to share-based
payments, financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assers. presentation of a cash tlow statement, standards not
yvet effective, impairment of assets and certain related party
rransactons, Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in
the consolidated financial statements.

As permitted by section 408{4) of the Comparmes Act 2006, a
separate income statement and staternant of comprebensive
income for the Company has not been included in these
financial statements. The principal accounting policies adopted
are described below. They have all been applied consistently to
all years presented.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprised goodwill ansing on business
combinations and operating inlangibles. Goodwill is defined
under ‘Business acquisitions’ on page 172 of the consoldated
financial statements. The Companies Act 2006 requires
goodwill to be amortised on a systematic basis over 11s useful
economic life, Under FRS 101, goodwiil is not amaortised but is
mstead reviewed for impairment on an annual basis or
whenaver thera are indicators of impairment. The Company
therefore previously mnvoked a "true and fair view covernide’ to
overcome the requiremant to amortise goodwill in the
Companies Act 2008. Had the Company amortised goodwill, a
pernod of three years would have been chosen as s useful life
from the date of transitton. The result for the year would have
been no different as the goodwill would already have been
fully amortised.

Intangible assets other than goodwill are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment charges. Amortisation
is charged 1o the income staternent on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful economic lives of intangible assets from
the date they are available for use. The estimated usetul lives
are generally deermed to be no longer than five years.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiares are stated at cost less any provision
for impairment.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's investments in
subsidianes and other assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated at least annually. An impairment charge is
recognised In the income staterment wheneaver the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair
value less costs to sell and thewr value in use. In assessing value
in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that raflects current market
assessments of the tme value of money and the nsks specific
1o the assel.

An impairment charge in respect of goodwill is not
subsequently reversed. For other assets, an impairment charge
15 reversed if there has bsen a change in the estimates usad to
determine the recoverable amount, but only to the extent that
the new carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
armortisation, if no impairment charge had been recogniscd.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial fiabihties, except for derivatives,
are measured initially at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs, and thereafter at amortised cost,

Derivatives

Derivatives are used to manage the Company’s cconoemic
exposure to financial risks. The principal instrurments used are
foreign exchange contracts and swaps and interest rale swaps
Dernvatives are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
based on market prices or rates. or calculated using either
discounted cash flow or option pricing models. Changes in the
value of derivatives are recognised in the income statement
unless they quaiify for hedge accounting when recognition

of any change in fair value depends on the nature of the

item being hedged.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Company operates one defined contribution and two
defined benefit pension schemes. The Company is the principal
employer of the Assocrated British Foods Pension Scheme,
which is a funded final salary schemc that is closed to new
members, as well as a small unfunded final salary scheme. For
the defined benefit schemes, the amount charged in the
income statement is the cost of benefits aceruing to employees
over the year, plus any benefit improverments granted to
members by the Company durmg the year, 1t alse includes net
interest expense or ncome calculated by applying the liability
discount rate to tha net pension asset or ability. The difference
between market value of assets and present value of llabilities
is disclosed as an asset or hability in the balance sheet. Any
related deferred tax (1o the extant recoverable) is disclosed
separately in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
Surpluses are recognised only to the extent that they are
recoverable. Contributions payable by the Cormpany in respect
of defined contribution plans are charged to operating profi

as Incurred,

income tax

income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. The Company recognises income tax in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to 1tems
taken directly to eguity.

Current tax 5 the tax expected to be payable on laxable income
for the vear, using tax rates enacted or substantvely enacted
durmg the period, 1ogether with any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

The Cornpany provides for deferred tax using the balance sheet
fiability method, providing for temporary ditferences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amaounts used for tax purposes.

The company bases the amount of deferred tax provided on the
expeacted manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
arnount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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The company recognises deferred tax assets only to the extent
that 1s probable that future taxable protits wilf be available
against which the asset can be utilised.

Share-based payments

The Company recognises the fair value of the share awards
at grant date as an employee axpense with a corresponding
mcrease 1N equity, spread over the period during which the
employees become unconditionaily entitled to the shares.

The Company adjusts the amount racognised to reflsct
expected and actual lavels of vesting except where the failure
to vest is as a resull of not meeting a market condition.

Where the Company grants allocations of shares to employees
of its subs:diaries, these are accounted for on the same basis
as allocations to employees of the Company, except that the
fair value 1s recognised as an increase to investment in
subsidiaries with a corresponding increase in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents compnse bank and cash balances,
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Leases

Alease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee, mn relurn for a payment or g senes of payments, the
right to use a specific asset for an agreed period,

Where the Company is a lessee, the following accounting
policy applies.

Right-of-use assets

The Company records right-of-use assets at cost at the
commencement date of the lease, which is the date the
underlying asset is avatlable for use, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
subseguent remeasurement of lease habilities.

Cost includes the amourt of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received.

The Company charges depreciation 1o the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the esttmated
useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The Company records lease habilities at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
madle over the lease term, discounted using the ncremental
borrowing rate at the commencement date of the lease if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments include fixed payments, including in-substance
fixed payments, and variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable.

Vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense n the penod in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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The Company subseguenlly measures lease liabilities at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
Company records the accretion and settlement of interest
through accruels and reduces the carrying amount of lcase
lighilities tor the capital element ot [ease payments made.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured when
there 1s a change in future lease payments due to a changs in
the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in the assessment of whether to
nurchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to those leases that have a lease term of twelve
rmonths or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. it also apples the low-valug asset
recognition exemption to groups of underlying leases that are
considered uniformly low value.

The Company expenses lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets in the income statement
as imcurred.

Lessor accounting

When subleasing assets the Company assesses the sublease
classification with reference to the head lease right-cf-use
asset, which considers, among other factors, whether the
sublease represents a majonty of the remaiming life of the
head lease.

The ratio of rental incorme 1o head lease rental payments 1s used
to determine how much of the right-of-use asset should be
derecognised, taking Into account whether the sublease/head
lease are above or below market rate.



Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Intangible assets

Operatng
Goodwell nangibles Total
£ fm fm
Cost
At 18 September 2021 14 g 23
Disposals (14 — (14)
At 17 September 2022 - 9 9
Amortisation
At 18 September 2021 - (8 8
Amortisation — (1} (1)
At 17 September 2022 - 19} (9)
Net book value
At 18 September 2021 14 1 16
At 17 September 2022 - _ —
The goodwill balance was disposed ot to a subsidiary undertaking at beok value.
2. Leases
Right-of-use assets
La ﬁﬁ"&'_}'&“‘—“-‘ T
oulldirgs Totzl
frr @331
Cost
At 18 Septernber 2021 18 18
At 17 September 2022 18 18
Depreciation
At 18 September 2021 {6} {6}
Depreciation for the year (3} {3;
At 17 September 2022 {9) (9)
Net book value
At 18 September 2021 12 12
At 17 September 2022 9 9
Lease liabilities
Lang and
buldings Total
{m frn
Cost
At 18 September 2021 14 14
Repayment of lease labilities {4 i4}
At 17 September 2022 10 10
Current 3 3
Non-current 7 7
10 10

3. Investments in subsidiaries

£m
At 18 September 2021 720
Addions 567
At 17 September 2022 1,287

Additions in the year cormpnse an increase of £556m in the existing mvestment in ABF Investments ple, a wholly owned
subsidiary, and £11m relating to the allocation of shares under sguity-settled share-based payment plans 1o employees

of the Company's subsidianes.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

4. Debtors
2022 2021
£m £rm
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 3,104 2,545
Cther debiors 18 18
Corporation {ax recoverabie 41 13
3,163 2,576
Amounts falling due after one year
Arnounts owed by subsidianes 98 146
The directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates their fair value,
5. Employee entitlements
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
assets assets  liabilities lapihinies net net
fm £m £m £m £m £
Reconciliation of changes in assets and liabilities
At beginning of year 4,315 3,767 {3,719) (3,705) 596 56
Current service cost - - (34) {33 (34} {33)
Employee contrinutions 6 6 (6) {6) - -
Employer contributions 27 30 - - 27 30
Benefit payments (136} (159) 138 161 2 2
Past service cost - - - {4 - (4}
Interest INncome/expense) 75 60 {64) (59} 11 1
Return on scherne assets less interest income (552} 617 - - {562} 617
Actuarial gains/llosses) ansing from changes in financial
assurnptions - - 1,325 (75} 1,325 {75
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in demographic
assumptions - - 1" {9 11 @)
Experience {losses)/gains on scheme liabihties — - {42) 11 (42) 11
At end of year 3,735 4,315 {2,391) {3,719} 1,344 596

The net pension asset of £1,344m comprises a funded scheme with a surplus of £1,.366m and an unfunded schemec with a deficit

ot £22m,

Further details of the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme are contained in note 12 of the consolidated financial statements,

6. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Errployvec Share-bagen
berefis paymoents Orther Teotal
£ frm frn fm
Al 18 September 2021 {149) 3 9 1137}
Armount charged to the income staterment {1 - 1 -
Amount charged to equity {186) - 1 {185}
Disposals — - (2 {2}
At 17 September 2022 {336} 3 9 (324)
7. Other creditors
2022 2027
£fm £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Accruals and deferred income 67 60
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 3,946 3,262
4,013 3,322
Amounts falling due after one year
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 196 243

The directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors approximates their fair value.
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8. Capital and reserves

Share capital
Al 18 September 2021 ang 17 September 2022, the Company's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 791,674,183 ardinary
shares of 5'7,,p, each carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £45m.

Capital redemption reserve
The non-distributable capital redemption reserve arose lollowing redemption of two mitlion £1 deferred shares &t par in 2010,

Dividends
Details of dividends paid and proposed are provided in note 6 1o the consolidated financial statements.

Share-based payments
Details of the Company’s equity-settled share-based payment plans are provided in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Hedging reserve

Tha hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivatives 1o the extent that they are effective cash flow haedgss,
net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged ransaction or when the hedged transaction
is no longer expected to ocour,

9. Contingent liabilities

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within 1ts group,
the Company considers these 10 be insurance arrangernents and accounts for themn as such. The guarantee contract is treated

as a contingent kabikty until such time as it becomes probabie that the Company will be required to make a payment under

the guaraniee.

The Company had provided £484m of guarantess in the ordinary course of business as a1 17 Septermber 2022 (20271 — £473m).

10. Related parties

The Company has a controlling shareholder relationship with its parent company, Wittington nvestments Limited, with the
trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals whao hold shares in the Company. Further detalls of
the controliing shareholder relationship are included in note 28 to the consolidated [inanciat statements. The Company has a related
party relationship with 1ts subsidiaries, assoeciates and joint ventures and directors. In the course of normal operations, related party
transactions entered into by the Company have been contracted on an arm’s length basis.

Material transactions and year end balances with related parties (excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were as follows:

2022 7021
Sub note £000 000

Charges to Wittington Investments Limited in respect of services provided by the
Company 330 395

Dividends paid by the Cormpany and received in a beneficial capacity by:

1.4 trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and their close family 1 12,631 1,870

2, {ii} directors of Wittington Investments Limited who are not trustees of the Foundation
and their close family

3 fily directors of the Cempany who are not lrustees of the Foundation and are not
directors of Wittington Investmeants Limited 1 128 14

Charges to fellow subsidiary undertakings 2 - 7

interest income sarned from nan-wholly owned subsidiaries 2 743 165

Amounts due from non-whoelly owned subsidiaries 2 10,008 7,868

pu—y

2,322 300

1 Detads of the nature of the relationships wath these bodien are set oul in note 28 of the consoldated financial statements
2 Detabs of the Company's sunsidanes, joint ventures and associates are set out 11 note 29 of the consolidated tinancial staterients.

11. Other information

Emoluments of directors
The remuneration of the directors of the Company is shown in the Remuneration Report for the Group on pages 126 to 153,

Employees
The Company had an average of 208 employees 1n 2022 {2021 - 217},

Auditors’ fees

Note 2 1o the consolidater] financial statements of the Group provides details of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors
on a group hasis.
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Progress report

Saturday nearest to 15 September

2011 2019 2020 2021 2022
£m £m frm £m £m

Revenue 15,671 16.824 13.937 13,884 16,997
Adjusted cperating profit 1,404 1,421 1,024 1,011 1,435
Exceptional items - 179} {156 {151} {206}
Transaction costs {2) {2) 12) (3} {6)
Amortisation of non-operating intangibles {41} 47 {59 (50} {47)
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments {23) 15} {15) 13} {5}
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 6 4 18 4 7
Profits tess losses on sale and closure of businesses (34} (94) (14) 20 (23}
Finance income 15 15 11 9 19
Finance expensc {50} (42} {124} (111} {111}
Other financial (expenselincome 4 12 3 {1} 13
Profit before taxation 1,279 1.173 6286 725 1,076
Taxation {257} (277} (221) (227} {356}
Profit for the period 1,022 896 465 498 720
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (pence) 127.5 1111 576 605 88.6
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 134.9 137.5 81.1 80.13 131.1
Dividends per share (pence} 45.0 46.35 nif 26.7 43.7
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Glossary

AGM Arnual General Mesting

APM Ahternative Performance Measure

the Board the board of Associated British Foods plc

cbp Carbeon Disclosure Project

cGuU Cash-generating unit

the Company Associated British Foods ple

CP Consumer Price Index (UK) =

ESG Environmental, Sccial and Governance ’

ESOP Employes Share Ownership Plan

Ev Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s statutory auditor (also refers
Lo associated firms of Ernst & Young LLP worldwide who work
on the audit of the consolidated financial statements)

FCA Financial Conduct Authority

FRC Fiancizl Reporting Counci

FRS 101 Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework

GMP Guaranteed Minimum Pension

the Group Associated Briish Foods ple, its subsidianes and 1is
interests injaint ventures and associates

HSE Health, Safety and Environment

IFRIC Inlernational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiltae

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard(s)

LTIP Long-tarm incentive plan

Net finance expense

the sum of finance income, Tinance expense and other financial
ncome on the face of the consoelidated income statement

RCF Revolving Credit Facility ]

ROI Return on mnvestment (see ESG glossary for turther information)
RSP Restricted Share Plan

SBTi the Science Based Targets initative

STIP Short-term mcentive plan

TCFD The Task Force for Climate-related Financial Disclosures

UKEB UK Endorsement Board
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Company directory

Associated British Foods plc Auditor Timetable

Registered office Ernsl & Young LLP Annual general meeting

Weston Centre Chartered Accountants 3 Decernber 2022

10 Grosvenor Street . .

London W1K 400Y Brokers Interirn results to be announced
: . . ) 25 April 2023

Company registered in Credit Suisse Securities (Europea) Limited

England and Wales, One Cabol Square Website

Aurmber 293262 London E14 40 v ahE oo Lk

Barclays Bank PLC

Company Secretary 5 The North Colonnade

Paul Lister Canary Wharf

Registrar

Equiniti

Aspect House
Spencer Road
L.ancing BNS9 6DA

Warning about share fraud

From time to time, companies, their subsidiary cormpanies, and shareholders can be the subject of investment scams. The
perpetrators obtain lists of sharehoiders or subsidiaries and make unsolicited phone calls or correspondence concerning investmeant
matters. They may offer to sell worthless or high-nsk shares and may offer to buy your current shareholdings at an unrealistic price.
They will often alse inform you of untrue scenarios to make you think thal you need to sell your shares or to justify an offer thal
seems too good 1o be true. These operations are commeniy known as ‘boiler rooms”,

Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any offers of unsolicited advice, discounted shares, premium prices for shares they
own or unsolicited investrment opportunities. If you receive any such unsolicited calls, correspondence or investment advice.

+ gnsure you get the correct name of the person and firm;

« check that the firm 1s on the Financial Cenduct Authority (FCA) Register to ensure they are authorised at https:/register fea.org.uk/;

use the details on the FCA Register 1o contact the firm;
+ call the FCA Consumer Helplineg (0800 111 6768) it there ars no contact details in the Register or you are told they are out of date; and

+ if you feel uncomfortable with the cali or the calls persist, simply hang up.

Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These have been made by the directors in good faith based on the information
available to them up to the time of their approval of this report. The directars can give no assurance that these expectations will
prove 1o have been correct. Due to the inherent uncertanties, including both economic and business nsk faclors underlying such
forward-looking information, actual results may differ materially from those expressad or implied by these forward-looking
statements. The directors undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking staterents whether as a result of new
information, future events of otherwise.
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